
 

Date of meeting 
 

Wednesday, 26th March, 2014  

Time 
 

7.00 pm  

Venue 
 

Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, Merrial Street, 
Newcastle-under-Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 2AG 

 

Contact Julia Cleary 742227 
 

   
  

 
 

Transformation and Resources Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee 

 

AGENDA 

 

PART 1 – OPEN AGENDA 

 

1 Apologies    

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    

 To receive Declarations of Interest from Members on items included in the agenda 
 

3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS   (Pages 1 - 4) 

 To consider the minutes of the previous meeting of this Committee held on Wednesday 
22nd January 2014. 
 

4 Better Care Fund   (Pages 5 - 52) 

5 Budget and Performance Monitoring Report Update from 
Previous Meeting   

(Pages 53 - 54) 

6 Report from the Constitution Review Working Group   (Pages 55 - 74) 

7 Portfolio Holder Questions Time    

8 Annual Review of the Work Plan   (Pages 75 - 80) 

9 URGENT BUSINESS    

 To consider any business which is urgent within the meaning of Section 100B (4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972. 
 

 
Members: Councillors Bannister, D Becket, Mrs Burgess (Vice-Chair), Fear, Hambleton, 

Mrs Hambleton, Howells, Jones, Taylor.J and Waring (Chair) 
 

PLEASE NOTE: The Council Chamber and Committee Room 1 are fitted with a loop system.  In addition, 
there is a volume button on the base of the microphones.  A portable loop system is available for all 
other rooms upon request. 
 
Members of the Council: If you identify any personal training/development requirements from any of  the 
items included in this agenda or through issues raised during the meeting, please bring them to the 
attention of the Democratic Services Officer at the close of the meeting. 

Public Document Pack



 
Meeting Quorums :- 16+= 5 Members; 10-15=4 Members; 5-9=3 Members; 5 or less = 2 Members. 

 
Officers will be in attendance prior to the meeting for informal discussions on agenda items. 



  
Transformation and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 22/01/14 

  
1 

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 

 
Wednesday, 22nd January, 2014 

 
Present:-  Councillor Mrs Elizabeth Shenton – in the Chair 

 
Councillors D Becket, Mrs Burgess, Fear, Hambleton, Mrs Hambleton, 

Howells, Jones, Taylor.J and Waring 
 

 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS  

 
It was confirmed that a written response would be provided by Friday in relation to 
the request on page 3 of the agenda for an estimate of the total staffing cost to run 
the budget consultation exercise. 
 
A full written response would also be provided to Cllr Becket by Friday in relation to 
his question submitted at the previous meeting.  
 
Members enquired as to whether the information referred to on page 5 of the agenda 
in relation to the minutes from the County Council had been provided to Cllr Holland. 
The enquiry would be passed to the Council Leader for clarification.  
 
A member stated that he did not feel that his views had been accurately recorded in 
the minutes in relation to the budget consultation exercise and wished to highlight the 
fact that the consultation exercise was not something he would want to see repeated 
every year. 
 
Resolved: That the minutes be agreed and the comments from Members noted. 
 

3. REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGETS 2014/2015  

 
A report was submitted to review progress on the completion of the revenue and 
capital budgets for 2014/15 following agreement of the 5 year Medium Term 
Financial Strategy. 
 
The Chair provided a summary of points that had been raised at the Scrutiny Café 
which had been held on 14th January 2014. 
 
The Executive Director for Resources and Support Services highlighted the changes 
that had been made to the report since the Committee had last seen it.  
 
Members congratulated officers on a well presented and high standard budget report. 
 
Resolved: (a) That the report be submitted to Cabinet 
 
 

4. SCALE OF FEES AND CHARGES 2014/2015  

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



  
Transformation and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 22/01/14 

 

  
2 

The Executive Director for Resources and Support Services confirmed that the report 
had been considered by Cabinet on 15th January 2014. 
 
Members highlighted the charges in relation to pre planning advice and stated that 
these would have to be implemented sensibly. It was agreed that this comment be 
taken back to the Leader as it was thought that home owners were entitled to 30 
minutes of free planning advice. 
 
Members were pleased that there was no plan to increase car parking fees and 
feedback in relation to the double ticketing appeared very favourable. 
 
There was some confusion in relation to the collection charges on the restricted 
appendix. A written response would be provided to clarify these charges. 
 
Resolved:  (a)  That the report be received. 
 
(b) That clarification be sought in relation to the charges listed on the restricted 
appendix. 
 

5. BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT  

 
A report was submitted to provide the Committee with the Financial and Performance 
Review, 2013/14 First Three Quarters (April -December). 
Members expressed some concern in relation to 1.1.2 in relation to the percentage of 
food establishments that were broadly compliant with good hygiene law. Members 
considered that 15% non-compliance was high. It was agreed that this target be 
taken back to officers and the portfolio holder for consideration. 
 
It was confirmed that the drop in results at 1.3.2 was due to the fact that there were 
no brown bin collections during the winter months. 
 
Members queried whether the arrow at 2.1.3 should be negative. Officers agreed to 
investigate this. It was also stated that some of the target figures were reliant on 
information being received from outside organisations such as the DWP and that this 
explained the lack of information at 2.1.4. Members requested that further information 
regarding which other organisations fed into the performance statistics be provided to 
the next meeting of the Committee. 
A request was made for clarity in relation to the figure at 3.2.3 and whether this was 
total attendances at the theatre or just attendances to watch plays.  
Members also raised some concerns in relation to the figures at 3.3.4 but it was 
thought that this was an issue best considered by another scrutiny committee as it 
related to access to sports facilities rather than resources or performance. 
 
Resolved: (a) That further information regarding other organisations feeding 
into the performance statistics be provided to the next meeting. 
 
(b) That officers provide clarity regarding the indicators at 2.1.3 and 3.2.3. 
 
 

6. UPDATE ON THE COUNCIL PLAN  

 
A report was submitted in relation to the Council Plan that was proposed for the 
period 2014-15 which was to be used as a preparation year for the council to 
undertake further work to ensure it was fit for the future and prepared to face the 

Page 2



  
Transformation and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 22/01/14 

  
3 

expected and unexpected challenges of 2015-20 as part of the on-going 20/20 vision 
work. 
 
The Head of Business Improvements and Partnerships requested that any comments 
relating to the plan be fed back to him after the meeting and highlighted the fact that 
the draft plan circulated at the meeting was a work in progress. 
 
Resolved: That members provide any feedback on the plan to the Head of 
Business Improvements and Partnerships.  
 

7. REPORT FROM THE CONSTITUTION REVIEW WORKING GROUP  

 
A report was submitted in relation to the work carried out by the Constitution Review 
Working Group. The Group consists of three Members, Cllr Elizabeth Shenton 
(Chair), Cllr Mark Holland and Cllr Nigel Jones.   
 
Members requested that clarity be sought from Cabinet as to what it viewed the role 
of a Cabinet Panel to be. 
 
The Committee thanked Martin Stevenson for his hard work in relation to the 
constitution review working Group and the preparation of the report. 
 
A final report would be submitted to full council in April stating the working group’s 
recommendations for constitutional changes. 
 
Resolved: That cabinet provide clarity in relation to the role of a Cabinet Panel. 
 

8. WORK PLAN  

 
Resolved: That the names of officers be added to the work plan as well as their 
job titles.  
 

9. URGENT BUSINESS  

 
10. KEELE GOLF CENTRE  

 
Members of the Active and Cohesive and Economic Development Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee had been invited to attend the meeting for the discussion of the 
report on Keele Golf Centre that had been considered by Cabinet at its meeting 15th 
January 2014. 
 
It was confirmed that a further report would be considered by Cabinet at the meeting 
due to be held on 5th March 2014. 
 
 

COUNCILLOR MRS ELIZABETH SHENTON 

Chair 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



  

  

 

 
 

Report Author: Mark Bailey 
Job Title:  Head of Business improvement & Partnerships 
Email:  mark.bailey@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk  
Telephone:  (01782) 742751 
 

Introduction 

To inform Members of proposals set out as part of the development of the Better 

Care Fund (BCF) across Staffordshire and within Newcastle. This item is also due to 

be considered by Cabinet at its meeting in April 2014. These proposals include the 

transfer of the Disabled Facilities Grant funding into the BCF from April 2015 

Background 

The Better Care Fund (BCF) aims to provide people with better integrated care and 

support in Staffordshire. In pursuing this aim, the BCF is focused on preventative 

work such as reablement, support for carers and services to allow disabled people to 

live independently. 

The Fund has been created from a range of different existing budgets and from April 

2015, the existing Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) budget – which is currently 

provided directly to district/borough councils – will be allocated to the BCF, although 

the statutory duty will remain with district/borough councils.  

The Better Care Fund (BCF) itself was previously known as the Integrated 

Transformation Fund and was announced nationally in June 2013 with the aim of 

providing people with better integrated care and support.  

NHS England will want these funds to be hosted by a Clinical Commissioning Group 

(North Staffordshire CCG in the case of Newcastle-under-Lyme) rather than by a 

local authority. The allocation to Staffordshire from the national BCF pot will be 

£56.1m in 2015/16 (£3.8m of which will be the DFG component). 

The first draft of the Better Care Fund Plan for Staffordshire was submitted to NHS 

England on 14th February 2014, following consultation with the Health and Well 

 

Report to the Transformation & Resources 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

26th March 2014 

Better Care Fund Submission 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



  

  

Being Board for Staffordshire and others. A copy of this submission can be found at 

Appendix A.  

The Plan itself includes all district/borough councils as parties to the Plan; seeks to 

reflect the focus on prevention in the Staffordshire Health and Well Being Strategy 

(and also the local version of the Strategy in Newcastle under Lyme); refers to the 

role of district/borough councils in engaging with providers and communities; and 

acknowledges the positive contribution of DFGs in preventing falls and other key 

areas of work. 

Having said that, the BCF Plan is limited in terms of its references to the role of 

district/borough councils – there are few references to them beyond those listed 

above. It does, however, seem likely that the scope of the funding channelled into 

the BCF nationally will expand over time and may provide opportunities for 

district/borough councils to promote the needs of the local communities in the 

borough and also input into the preventative agenda via a number of council services 

(e.g. leisure/culture; economic development; housing; community safety; and 

environmental health) – although this is, at the present time, no means certain. 

The issue of DFG funding is one of immediate concern, however, to councils such as 

NULBC (who will still have a legal duty to deliver adaptations where certain criteria 

are met). A letter was issued, therefore, in December 2013 from the Departments of 

Health and Communities and Local Government stated that the DFG element of BCF 

for 2015/16 must be allocated back to the relevant housing and strategic housing 

authorities. NULBC’s allocation will be £654,000. 

To this end, therefore, the report to Cabinet is proposing that the Council signs up to 

the BCF only until the end of 2015/16, pending a review of the position regarding 

DFGs. Obviously, it remains a risk to this Council if it remains statutorily responsible 

for DFGs but without the certainty of ongoing funding. NULBC is therefore proposing 

(subject to Cabinet approval) that a review of the position relating to DFGs is 

organised by the Departments of Health and Communities & Local Government in 

Staffordshire, with the involvement of all local authorities in the county.  

In terms of future working, it is likely that a Partnership Agreement (covering section 

75 of the NHS Act 2006 allowing the NHS and local authorities to pool budgets) will 

be needed to underpin the governance and management of the BCF. 

District/borough councils will not be obliged to sign up to the s75 Agreement and will 

be able to receive funding from the BCF without such an agreement in place, but not 

to do so could exclude NULBC from discussions on future allocations of funding and 

it may be difficult for additional funding to be invested from the BCF into NULBC 

work and also into the DFGs as a preventative activity. Further details on this will 

become available later in the year and a further report will be presented to the 

Committee at that time.  

 

Page 6



  

  

Questions to be Addressed 

• How will the transition arrangements be undertaken prior to the changes to 

DFG funding in April 2015? What is the role of NULBC in this process? 

• Will this Council be assured of its DFG funding in 2015/16 and what will 

happen beyond April 2016?  

• What is the position regarding NULBC in terms of the potential wider focus on 

the BCF and integrated commissioning – will the Council be commissioned to 

do more work and how will this be implemented? 

• What are the details underpinning the development of s.75 Partnership 

Agreements as set out in this note?  

Outcomes 

• To understand the current position with regard to the development of the 

Better Care Fund in Staffordshire  

• To analyse and understand the implications for NULBC in terms of Disabled 

Facilities Grant, including the future funding picture  

• To gain some insight into the thinking of partner organisations around future 

commissioning opportunities for NULBC  

• Supporting Information  

• Staffordshire Better Care Fund – First Draft Submission 

• Better Care Fund – Outcomes and Metrics 

• Better Care Fund – Financial Summary 

Invited Partners/Stakeholders/Residents 

Representatives from the Staffordshire Health and Well Being Board 

Constraints 

• Future commissioning plans still to be developed by different organisations 

involved in the BCF 

• Work to be done on future of DFGs post 2016  

Conclusions 

This report provides information on the current position with regard to the 

development of the Better Care Fund in Staffordshire.  

Page 7



  

  

There is a request from the Staffordshire Health and Well Being Board that all 

district/borough councils sign up to the Fund submission. 

The Council is seeking reassurances and further information on the future of DFGs 

and also the future involvement and role of district/borough councils in the BCF and 

also in terms of wider commissioning.  

Relevant Portfolio Holder(s) 

Cllr Gareth Snell, Communications, Policy & Partnerships 

Local Ward Member (if applicable) 

N/A 

Background Materials 

See ‘supporting information’ 

Appendices 

Appendix A – Staffordshire Better Care Fund – Draft Submission 

Appendix B – BCF – Outcomes/Metrics & Financial Summary  

Page 8



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

1 

Appendix 1: Draft BCF plan submission template  

Staffordshire County submission 

Draft Submission 

1. Plan Details 
 

a) Summary of plan 

Local Authority  
Staffordshire County Council 
Cannock Chase District Council 
East Staffordshire Borough Council 
Lichfield District Council 
Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council 
South Staffordshire District Council 
Stafford Borough Council 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
Tamworth Borough Council 
 

Clinical Commissioning Groups  

Stafford and Surrounds CCG 
Cannock Chase CCG 
East Staffordshire CCG 
South East Staffordshire & Seisdon Peninsula CCG 
North Staffordshire CCG 

Boundary Differences  

The CCGs together are coterminous with the County Council, subject to the usual 
differences between resident and registered populations  

Date to be agreed at Health and Well-Being Board:  

Final Sign Off 13th February 2014  

Date submitted:  

14th February 2014 
 

Minimum required value 
of BCF pooled budget 

2014/15 £16,000,000 

2015/16 £56,108,000 

Total proposed value of 
pooled budget 

2014/15 £16,000,000 

2015/16 A minimum of £56,108,000 with likely total pooled 
budget being in excess of £150,000,000 

 

Page 9



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

2 
b) Authorisation and signoff 

 

Signed on behalf of the Clinical 

Commissioning Group 

(insert signature here) 

Stafford and Surrounds CCG & Cannock 

Chase CCG 

By <Name of Signatory> 

Position <Job Title> 

Date <date> 

 

Signed on behalf of the Clinical 

Commissioning Group 

(insert signature here) East Staffordshire CCG 

By <Name of Signatory> 

Position <Job Title> 

Date <date> 

 

Signed on behalf of the Clinical 

Commissioning Group 

(insert signature here) 

South East Staffordshire & Seisdon 

Peninsula CCG 

By <Name of Signatory> 

Position <Job Title> 

Date <date> 

 

Signed on behalf of the Clinical 

Commissioning Group 

(insert signature here) North Staffordshire CCG 

By <Name of Signatory> 

Position <Job Title> 

Date <date> 

 

Page 10



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

3 
Signed on behalf of the Council 

(insert signature here) Staffordshire County Council 

By <Name of Signatory> 

Position <Job Title> 

Date <date> 

 

Signed on behalf of the Council 

(insert signature here) Cannock Chase District Council 

By <Name of Signatory> 

Position <Job Title> 

Date <date> 

 

Signed on behalf of the Council 

(insert signature here) East Staffordshire Borough Council 

By <Name of Signatory> 

Position <Job Title> 

Date <date> 

 

Signed on behalf of the Council 

(insert signature here) Lichfield District Council 

By <Name of Signatory> 

Position <Job Title> 

Date <date> 

 

Signed on behalf of the Council 

(insert signature here) Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council 

By <Name of Signatory> 

Page 11



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

4 
Position <Job Title> 

Date <date> 

 

Signed on behalf of the Council 

(insert signature here) South Staffordshire District Council 

By <Name of Signatory> 

Position <Job Title> 

Date <date> 

 

Signed on behalf of the Council 

(insert signature here) Stafford Borough Council 

By <Name of Signatory> 

Position <Job Title> 

Date <date> 

 

Signed on behalf of the Council 

(insert signature here) Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 

By <Name of Signatory> 

Position <Job Title> 

Date <date> 

 

Signed on behalf of the Council 

(insert signature here) Tamworth Borough Council 

By <Name of Signatory> 

Position <Job Title> 

Date <date> 

 

Page 12



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

5 

 

 

Service provider engagement 

Please describe how health and social care providers have been involved in the 

development of this plan, and the extent to which they are party to it  

 

Engagement with providers has been, and continues to be, undertaken at a number of 

different levels. 

At the strategic level, the HWB has developed a strategy for provider engagement which 

addresses the complexity and scale of the provider market across the county, looking not 

only at the six large NHS Trusts, but also the plethora of small and medium-sized 

independent and VCS providers across the range of social care and broader services 

highlighted in the Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS).  This builds upon the 

foundations laid through the engagement process for the JHWS, which included a large 

event with providers in September 2013. 

At the sector level, significant work has been done across specific local health and social 

care economies and with individual provider cohorts.  Examples of this include: 

• The Cross Economy Transformation Programme (CETP) work in North Staffordshire, 

which has been developed since January 2012 in regular and close consultation with 

providers 

• There is a long standing transformation programme in the west of the County, more 

recently focussed on the Mid Staffordshire NHS FT Trust Special Administrator’s 

input. 

Page 13



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

6 
• A Health Economy Forum has been operating in the east of the County with the 

two CCGs, the acute, community and mental health providers and the County 

Council 

• The Intermediate Care/Frail Elderly and Long Term Conditions market engagement 

activities which took place in December involving South Staffordshire CCGs and the 

County Council 

• The Lifestyles and Mental Wellbeing aspects of the Healthy Tamworth work.  

Further details of consultation work can be found in our successful application to become an 

Integrated Care Pioneer for End of Life Care. 

At individual provider level, engagement between commissioners and providers is active and 

ongoing, building on the existing contractual arrangements, while ensuring these discussions 

are fully informed regarding, and guided by, the broader strategic context.  Examples include 

the engagement with University Hospital North Staffordshire (UHNS) as part of the Cross-

Economy Transformation work in northern Staffordshire and with Mid-Staffordshire NHS 

Foundation Trust through the Trust Special Administrator (TSA) process. 

District and Borough Councils are active participants in this process and are leading 

significant engagement with other key providers such as registered social landlords and the 

voluntary sector.  

Ongoing engagement is taking place with providers, in recognition of the significance of their 

position in the system, the value they can bring, the need for transformational leadership and 

change, but also of the current structures that exist in parts of the county. It is only through 

this ongoing engagement that we will be able to transact change and transform the service 

approach for Staffordshire. Very recently, the Area Team of NHS England has initiated work 

on an acute services review across the County, which will give a framework for discussions 

around the impact of delivering our ambitious strategy.   

A large proportion of the delivery of the Better Care Fund plan relies on a handful of large 

provider trusts with which engagement (led by the H&WBB) is taking place as set out above. 

However, the delivery of residential, nursing and domiciliary care, as well as voluntary sector 

support, carers support, housing and other areas of social care and support, is sourced from 

a diverse market with numerous smaller local provider organisations.  For these sectors, 

there are a number of umbrella groups, which are providing the conduit for engagement.   

Discussions are taking place through Health Education West Midlands (HEWM), the Local 

Education and Training Board and Council (LETB/LETC), to address issues of workforce 

development required by the forthcoming Care Act, the JHWS and our local BCF plans. 

Patient, service user and public engagement  

Please describe how patients, services users and the public have been involved in the 

development of this plan, and the extent to which they are party to it  

As the recent report of the Francis Inquiry makes clear, the voice of the local population 

must be at the heart of our debates, just as our communities must be at the centre of 

everything we do. 

Page 14



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

7 
The experience at Stafford Hospital is especially powerful in this respect and we are 

united in our commitment to ensure that we avoid such failures in care affecting 

Staffordshire’s people ever again. 

In order to strengthen the voice of people who use services, in 2012 we established a new 

organisation called Engaging Communities Staffordshire (ECS). 

Building on the experience and expertise of the Local Involvement Network (LINk), ECS 

goes beyond the remit for HealthWatch to become a centre of expertise and knowledge 

about the people of Staffordshire.  It has a key role as an independent organisation to collate 

and challenge all the available information about how people experience health and social 

care services, undertaking new research where necessary and drawing on this to present a 

clear and persuasive contribution to the debate. 

Through its full membership of the Health and Wellbeing Board as the provider of 

Staffordshire’s HealthWatch, ECS provides a powerful connection with the people of 

Staffordshire, ensuring that their voice is heard at every stage. 

There is a raft of communication mechanisms in place locally that complement the 

countywide work of HealthWatch, in particular scrutiny through District and Borough 

Councils and the formal engagement activity undertaken during the summer of 2013 

regarding the JHWS.  This involved a significant number of members of the public and 

gathered clear evidence of support for the direction of travel set out in the JHWS. 

Public, patient and service user engagement is also embedded in the process which is 

taking place to co-design service specifications for re-procurement of key integrated service 

delivery areas of Long Term Conditions and Intermediate Care/reablement.  

Within learning disabilities, extensive engagement has been undertaken in developing the 

Living My Life My Way strategy through involving families and people with learning 

disabilities in shaping the direction of travel.  Over 250 people have been involved in the 

consultation process to improve access to mainstream health services for people with 

learning disabilities. 

Health Watch has identified Carers Engagement as one of their key priority areas.  

HealthWatch has agreed to chair the newly established ‘Staffordshire Carers Partnership’ as 

an independent chair. 

Related Documentation 

Please include information/links to any related documents such as the full project plan for the 

scheme, and documents related to each national condition  

The following list is a current synopsis of some of the key source documents that have 
informed this submission, together with a brief synopsis of each.  

Ref. Document Synopsis & links 

Doc1 “Living Well in 
Staffordshire” 
Health and 

The Health and Wellbeing Strategy sets out the priorities and 
activities which the Health and Wellbeing Board will be 
pursuing between 2013-2018 across Staffordshire County 

Page 15



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

8 
Wellbeing Strategy 
2013-2018 

Council and 5 CCGs. 

Doc2 “Seven day 
services 
Transformational 
Improvement 
Programme” 

Detailed planning document covering Northern Staffordshire 
with regard to implementation of 7-day services in the area.  A 
similar plan is being developed for Southern Staffordshire.   

Doc3 “Transforming 
cancer and end of 
life care”, Pioneer 
Application, June 
2013 

Successful joint application between Macmillan, Staffordshire 
CCGs and the County Council, in partnership with patients and 
carers to develop a Principal Provider model for end of life care 
across Staffordshire, to help people achieve their desired place 
of care and type of support when faced with cancer, or at the 
end of their lives.  Including innovative approach to integration 
through use of Principal Provider who has responsibility for 
patient and carer experience throughout the care pathway, 
requiring collaboration with Public Health, NHS, CCGs and LA; 
working with patients to co-design outcomes; using outcomes-
based specifications.  

Doc4 Stoke Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy 

Stoke on Trent Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

http://www.moderngov.stoke.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=52269 

Doc5 Living My Life My 
Way 

 Strategy for Disabled People in Staffordshire 2013-2018 

Doc6 Service 
Development Plan 
for Learning 
Disabilities 

Service Plan for Specialist Health Adult Learning Disability 
Services, 2013 2016 

Doc7 Metrics  Document setting out in more detail metrics and targets set 

2. Vision and Schemes 

a) Vision for Health and Care Services  

Please describe the vision for health and social care services for this community for 2018/19. 

- What changes will have been delivered in the pattern and configuration of services over the 

next five years? - What difference will this make to patient and service user outcomes?  

 

The vision for the health, social care and associated services of the future for Staffordshire 

are set out in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy (Doc2) “Living Well in Staffordshire” 2013-

18.  At the basis of the strategy is an emphasis on preventative approaches which reduce 

dependency on the NHS and social care by preventing crises, and which increase people’s 

resilience and independence: ambitions that have been consistently expressed in processes 

of engagement conducted with those that use services. Continuing as we are is not an 

option, with a predicted funding gap (by 2018) of £292m in Staffordshire if nothing were to 

change.  It is estimated that preventative health and care services delivered in the 

community save £4 for every £1 spent.   

Page 16



 
 

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1

Activity will focus on community and preventative services reducing the level of activity 

and the impact of costs on acute and NHS services and on

such as residential care. 

The vision is being delivered through an overarching set of principles, which is relayed into 

different approaches to service delivery for different delivery areas set out below, resulting in 

the main schemes which form part of this Better Care Fund plan, the links are indicated 

below: 

 

Vision 

The vision for people in Staffordshire is set out in the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy:  

Living safe and well in my own home

I will live in my own home and remain part of my local community as long as possible. I will 

be able to access support solutions that are built around my ongoing home life and 

independence, taking account of my housing needs.  I feel safe in my local community and 

my community is supportive of everyone, especially those who are most vulnerable.

Living my life my way, with help when I need it

I will have control over my own life and be able to make choices about what happens to me.  

Information, advice and guidance will be readily av

support I need.  If I am particularly vulnerable, local services will be aware of this and will 

offer me targeted support early, to help me manage my situation well.

Treating me as an individual with fairness and 

Vision

• Key points from Health and Wellbeing Strategy

• What is the outcome for people?

Overarching 

principles

• How will services be delivered differently 

• Main principles for service delivery

Delivery 

specifics

• How will this look in terms of key service delivery areas

Schemes
• What are the schemes in the BCF to deliver this

  
  

taffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

Activity will focus on community and preventative services reducing the level of activity 

and the impact of costs on acute and NHS services and on ongoing social care services, 

The vision is being delivered through an overarching set of principles, which is relayed into 

different approaches to service delivery for different delivery areas set out below, resulting in 

n schemes which form part of this Better Care Fund plan, the links are indicated 

The vision for people in Staffordshire is set out in the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy:  

Living safe and well in my own home 

and remain part of my local community as long as possible. I will 

be able to access support solutions that are built around my ongoing home life and 

independence, taking account of my housing needs.  I feel safe in my local community and 

upportive of everyone, especially those who are most vulnerable.

Living my life my way, with help when I need it 

I will have control over my own life and be able to make choices about what happens to me.  

Information, advice and guidance will be readily available to me and will help me draw on the 

support I need.  If I am particularly vulnerable, local services will be aware of this and will 

offer me targeted support early, to help me manage my situation well. 

Treating me as an individual with fairness and respect 

Key points from Health and Wellbeing Strategy

What is the outcome for people?

How will services be delivered differently 

Main principles for service delivery

How will this look in terms of key service delivery areas

What are the schemes in the BCF to deliver this

 
  

  

 

9 
Activity will focus on community and preventative services reducing the level of activity 

ongoing social care services, 

The vision is being delivered through an overarching set of principles, which is relayed into 

different approaches to service delivery for different delivery areas set out below, resulting in 

n schemes which form part of this Better Care Fund plan, the links are indicated 

 

The vision for people in Staffordshire is set out in the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy:   

and remain part of my local community as long as possible. I will 

be able to access support solutions that are built around my ongoing home life and 

independence, taking account of my housing needs.  I feel safe in my local community and 

upportive of everyone, especially those who are most vulnerable. 

I will have control over my own life and be able to make choices about what happens to me.  

ailable to me and will help me draw on the 

support I need.  If I am particularly vulnerable, local services will be aware of this and will 

Page 17



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

10 
I will be treated as an individual, with respect, dignity and fairness, and as an expert in 

my own experience.  I will receive support to a high standard and I will be able to feed 

my views easily to the Health and Wellbeing Board and to services, and my views will be 

listened to and acted on. 

Making best use of taxpayers’ money 

I will be confident that public money is being spent well, and that I get quality, and value for 

money services locally, whether the services I receive are provided by the NHS, the Council 

or private and voluntary sector organisations. 

Overarching principles 

This vision will be delivered through overarching principles including: 

• There will be greater emphasis on preventing ill health and promoting independence 

in the provision of all NHS, social care and other associated services. 

• Better-coordinated treatment, care and support will be available for people in the 

place which is right for them, with an emphasis on keeping people in their 

communities, and delivering care and support where appropriate in peoples’ homes. 

• The delivery of community-based services will centre on General Practice, which will 

be the focal point of coordination and support. 

• The local health, social care and housing economy will develop comprehensive 
generalist community-based care and support for people with frailty, complex needs 
and/or long term physical and mental health conditions, complemented by specialist 
input as required. Central to this will be robust, flexible domiciliary care capacity. 
 

• Community-based services will be built upon, and will privilege the further 
development of the range of underpinning community assets fundamental to a 
healthy society.   

• A significant amount of resource presently committed to non-elective urgent care 

services in the acute sector will shift to fund this community-based activity. 

• Increasingly sophisticated processes of commissioning will be employed to 

incentivise community-based care and support, and to ensure joined up delivery of 

pathway-based services. 

• People will be supported to take control of their health and wellbeing, and of the 

services that support them. 

• Services will be commissioned where possible for outcomes rather than activity-

based targets  

This requires a major shift of resources from acute and secondary care, to community and 

primary services, including preventative approaches.  Over the next five years we expect to 

see significant progress on this vision, with some schemes being developed at present, and 

more to be developed over the coming period, in collaboration with acute services locally. 

Page 18



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

11 
Work is already well underway in Staffordshire (aligned with strategic partners in Stoke-

on-Trent) to address the above-noted issues in the context of the following areas of 

activity. These will be the basis of this Better Care Fund submission. 

• Frailty/complex needs/long term physical and organic mental health conditions 

• Learning disability 

• Mental health 

• Carers 

• End of life care/Cancer 

• Community equipment  

• Major housing adaptations (Disabled Facilities Grant) 
 

Service delivery 

In practice this is likely to translate into different approaches for different service delivery 
areas.  As an overarching approach, a number of areas are being developed and/or 
expanded as set out below.  These approaches will need to be combined with the 
development of an approach to demand management and the changing of public behaviours 
which will centre on the development of a service offer that is preferable to the public, easier 
for them to understand and use. In Staffordshire, it is clear that this is a problem of service 
design and availability, and that the solution lies with those that commission and deliver 
services. The Brighton & Hove model is being explored in this context, although other 
approaches will also be considered. 

We will also need to develop different solutions for different geographical areas, based on 
the risk profiles and local population needs of those areas.  For this reason, as will be seen 
to some extent in this submission, variants on approaches are being developed for different 
localities within Staffordshire. 

 

Page 19



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

12 

 

 

 

What follows is the planned approach for different service areas: 

Frailty/complex needs/long term physical and organic mental health conditions 

The majority of users of NHS and social care services are older people, many experiencing 

frailty, often with complex needs and multiple long-term conditions. Present service 

configurations and their focus on specific health conditions do not always serve these people 

well, and they can become stuck in high-level services for want of a more coordinated 

approach to addressing their needs. Often, the experience of services for this cohort of users 

can be negative and disempowering.  However, acute sector services do offer a level of 

safety and certainty to people with complex needs who are in crisis.  If people of this cohort 

are to be properly supported in the community, the same level of support needs to be 

available there 

There are a number of elements which make up the vision for these patient/service user 

groups, in order to improve the support available in the community.  These include the 

following: 

A revised approach to intermediate care / re-ablement / rehabilitation.  The Clinical 

Commissioning Groups and the County Council are co-designing and developing an 

Intermediate Care provision which acts to support patients in times of exacerbation and/or 

crisis.  This support will be delivered either in the patient’s own home or in a suitable bed 

based unit for a short period of reablement. 

  

 “house of 

care” model 

Risk stratification 
& predictive 

modelling 

Improving 
integrated care 

and outcomes for 
people 

Use of 

community 
assets & social 

capital 

Assistive 

technology 

Brokerage (self-

management) / care co-

ordination; case 
management 

“shared risk” 

payment 

mechanism with 
providers 

Carer 

support 

Hospital triage 
integrated teams 

(Brighton & Hove 
model) 

Page 20



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

13 
This work is being developed across a number of the partners within the BCF 

membership with the intention of a newly commissioned service being in place by April 

2015. 

Similarly, a revised approach is in development for people with Long Term Conditions. An 

innovative outcome-based service specification (co-produced with service users) is in 

development. Exploration of new ways of commissioning and delivering this ground-breaking 

long term conditions service is underway. 

Varying approaches to Primary Care-led Services (Integrated Locality Teams) are being 

developed across Staffordshire.  These Primary Care-led Services based around GPs will 

offer not only an assessment and diagnosis for the patient, but will support the patient with 

the management of their long term condition/s through to their end of life.  

This model is the Clinical Commissioning Groups’ and County Councils opportunity to deliver 

an integrated and seamless service wrapped around the patient, ensuring that they only 

have to tell their story once and are supported by a range of highly skilled professionals who 

put the needs of the patient at the centre, rather than solely considering the person in the 

context of their diagnosed condition.  

The exact service make-up differs from area to area, depending on the key needs of the 

local populations, but broadly speaking will incorporate a range of services including, 

medical, nursing support, practice pharmacy, social care, end of life specialists and Allied 

Health Professionals. This will be a system wide and complex programme of change which 

will take a number of months to define, commission and deliver. 

Falls Prevention is a major plank of the Frail Elderly programme, with plans taking shape 

for increased involvement of Districts to work with Public Health partners in delivery of 

improved Falls Prevention programmes linked with Equipment and DFG delivery. 

Re-organising domiciliary care provision to deliver home and community support which is 

more integrated with health, is in early discussion.  The model being considered is based on 

the work of Wiltshire, Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead, and Oxfordshire, and 

looks at commissioning for individual outcomes, rather than a time and task-based model, 

and linking with health.  Improving medication management may be a part of this 

redesigned service, although equally may sit separately as part of the GP multi-disciplinary 

teams. 

Personal Health Budgets have been piloted nationally. The results are impressive, with an 

average of £169 savings from the Greater East Midlands CSU pilot per person per week 

(and greater savings elsewhere), and a better quality of life for those people who transfer to 

PHB’s,.  Focusing on Continuing Healthcare patients (approx. 2,000 in Staffordshire), the 

pilot is aiming to become mainstreamed in 2014/15, with a staged implementation of up to 

50 cases transferring, increasing to larger numbers in 2015/16.  Year one will also focus on 

capturing other savings benefits, such as a reduced number of admissions to hospital, and 

of GP visits.  The potential savings for Staffordshire are significant:estimated as being 

c.£17m savings if all CHC patients were to transfer to PHBs. 

The right for people eligible for Continuing Healthcare and with Long Term Conditions to ask 

for and receive Personal Health Budgets is being strengthened over the coming year. 

Page 21



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

14 
Staffordshire’s work on Personal Health Budgets reflects the importance attached to 

delivering personalised services throughout all service delivery; most significantly in 

social care services. 

Learning Disabilities 

The commissioning of learning disability services has been reappraised in consideration of 

the findings of the National Development Team for inclusion (NDTi), commissioned in 2011 

by NHS and local government commissioners for Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire to review 

specialist Adult Learning Disability health services across the two areas, and the DH review 

of the Winterbourne View Hospital in December 2012. The intention is that, as a product of 

these reviews, learning disabilities services will be commissioned in partnership on a Stoke-

on-Trent and Staffordshire basis.  

The main priorities of this joint commissioning approach adhere to the strategic principles 

outlined above, but in addition by 2015/16, the approach to both specialised and generalist 

support for people with learning disabilities and complex needs will privilege inclusion, the 

enabling of the full rights of citizenship, and parity of treatment of people with learning 

disabilities in mainstream NHS, social care and associated services. 

Through this integrated commissioning approach and the use of the Better Care Fund 

mechanism, the increasingly integrated delivery of learning disabilities services will benefit 

from more sophisticated and outcome based specification, more rigorous monitoring of 

delivery, and vastly improved outcomes for people with learning disabilities.  Working in a 

collaborative and integrated manner allows us to provide a whole system approach and the 

most effective pathways to support people by offering a seamless service to the individual 

making the best use of resources in the system. 

The strengthening of social services and the increased focus upon personalisation is being 

further improved by the development of a new ‘all ages’ assessment and person centred 

planning service: ‘Independent Futures’.  The next stages in this programme of work will be 

closer integration across health and social care. 

Mental Health 

The partners in Staffordshire recognise that the disjoint between ‘mainstream’ health and 

social care services and ‘specialist’ services that support people with mental health needs is 

a major and increasing problem, especially when considering the growing cohort of people 

with multiple long term conditions requiring coordinated and coherent community-based 

support. The inclusion of specialist mental health activity and the development of generic 

mental health capability in all services will be a key priority of this developing agenda for 

integration.  

There has been a gradual shift over time in clinical delivery of mental health care, in that 

there has been a move from delivering mental health care in acute care settings to delivering 

care in the community. The clinical case for this is well researched and has led to a 

reduction in the number of admissions and the length of stay of people admitted. However. 

there is a significant and increasing proportion of individuals with complex and multiple 

needs now being supported within the community that requires packages of care to support 

them to remain there and avoid the need for contact with acute care settings.  

Page 22



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

15 
As commissioners, we are committed to leading the health and social care agenda to 

ensure that local people with mental health problems have the opportunity to prosper, be 

healthy and happy.  

We will be building on the benefits of integrating care not only across the boundaries of 

health and social care but taking into account the growing support for better integrated 

healthcare, achieving parity between mental health, physical health and social care is an 

essential feature of our intentions going forward as part of a system that expects to reduce 

inequality and provide the best possible support to individuals.  

We have set out our intention to work with all of our providers to deliver a model of care 

provision that closes the gaps between services, we intend to work in a more integrated way 

to remodel existing support with a greater focus on early intervention, service integration, 

personalisation and recovery, seeing recovery as a journey rather than a destination – this 

will require new and innovative ways of working to deliver the outcomes we have identified. 

We are fully engaged with local providers in the discussion around services taking a problem 

solving, rather than a criteria led approach.  

We are now setting out our agenda with other public services including those within the 

wider areas of the Local Authority, as well as with the Police and other public services, to 

ensure that mental health is embedded in everyone’s agenda. We will have a specific goal 

around eliminating the detention of people subject to a section 136 being detained in police 

custody.  

 

Carers 

Carers are the largest providers of care and support in the UK, providing £119bn of care per 

year. There is strong evidence to suggest that effective integrated commissioning for 

improved outcomes for carers can have significant impacts on health and social care 

services.  Staffordshire aims to improve outcomes for carers through the development of a 

co-produced service re-design for delivery from April 2015.  Improved outcomes for carers in 

Staffordshire will be driven through the ‘Staffordshire Carers Partnership’ which aims to 

provide governance, strategic direction, meaningful engagement and co-production with 

stakeholders including carers, providers, social care and health. 

We recognise that early identification, provision of information advice and guidance and 

support for carers is key in terms of the prevention agenda for the health and wellbeing of 

both carers and the person they care for.  There is evidence to suggest that the 

commissioning of information and advice services, breaks and emotional support for carers 

can reduce overall spending on care and their need to access mental health services.  

Effective integrated commissioning for carers can therefore have a significant impact on 

financial savings for health and social care and will: reduce admissions to hospital and 

residential care; reduce the costs of delays in transfers of care; reduce carers’ need to 

access primary care as a result of their caring role and reduce overall spending on care.  

Evidence to support integrated commissioning for carers has identified that admission or 

readmission to hospital by a person with a long-term condition can be an indication that the 

carer is no longer able to care, often due to the strain of caring causing physical or mental ill 

Page 23



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

16 
health, or that discharge planning is poor and the carers is not involved as an expert 

partner in care. 

Key outcomes identified for carers in Staffordshire include improved health and wellbeing 

through increased access to information and support and opportunities to have a break from 

the caring role, these services will be provided through the re-design of services which is 

currently taking place. 

End of life care/Cancer 

The Staffordshire Transforming Cancer and End of Life Care Programme is one of fourteen 

national Integration Pioneers.  The aim of the Transforming Cancer and End of Life Care 

Programme is to support NHS and social care commissioners to shift the focus of practice 

from providers and individual interventions to one that encompasses the whole patient 

journey, both for cancer care (prevention through to survivorship) and for end of life care (for 

all long term conditions). To achieve this, the CCGs will tender for a prime provider for each 

pathway (relating to cancer services for three tumour sites initially – lung, breast and 

bladder/prostate), and one for end of life care who will be held accountable for the whole 

patient journey and will have all the individual contracts for that journey assigned to it.  

There are three core components to the programme. 

• Co-designing the best outcome-based integrated health and social care pathways, 
based on patient/carer need, for end of life care for all long term conditions. 

• Changing the way both cancer and end of life care services are commissioned with the 
move, by April 2015, to prime provider models. It will be up to each prime provider to 
determine the best pathway, based on outcomes, and appoint thereafter subcontractors 
to deliver the pathway. 

• Supporting the prime provider from 2015-2025 to manage change within the contracts to 
ensure that outcomes are achieved and that the project becomes self-funding within the 
first two years, and innovation and system change are achieved for whole scale 
integrated working. 
 

This integrated approach will enable the development of care and support that is more 

qualitative, and that is tailored to the needs and preferences of the people receiving the 

services. The individual outcomes that people experience will be significantly improved.   

Community equipment  

Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent have set up a joint commissioning partnership for the 

delivery of an integrated community equipment service (ICES). An effective community 

equipment service is an essential element of any system of care and support, and through 

the consolidation of commissioning power the intention is that this arrangement will deliver 

both cost benefits through economies of scale, and also improve the speed and efficiency of 

the service. This will have positive benefits for those that use the service. 

From 2015/16, the ICES will be funded through the Better Care Fund.     

Major housing adaptations (Disability Facilities Grant) 

Currently held and delivered separately by District authorities, 2014/15 will see a major shift 

in activity towards the development of a pan-Staffordshire approach to commissioning and 

delivery of DFG’s.  The outcomes for people will be a better aligned and more cost-effective 

Page 24



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

17 
delivery with improved outcomes for people at local levels.  The new shape of delivery of 

DFG’s will deliver better outcome in the following areas: 

• Enable people to remain living safely and independently in their own homes 

• Promote resilience and sustainability so less likely to need care and health support 

• Ensure consistency of service delivery and quality across Staffordshire 

Improved strategic commissioning 

Central to this vision is the imperative of joined up and coordinated strategic commissioning. 

If the NHS, local authorities and other contributors are to continue to provide high quality, 

safe and effective services to those that need them in the face of the financial and 

demographic challenges of the future, there will need to be diligent attention paid to the use 

of resources, the avoidance of duplication, and ensuring that activity properly addresses 

defined need. In addition, as noted above, the present arrangement of services does not 

provide the right kind of support to the growing swathe of people who are living longer with 

long term conditions, frailty and complex needs. 

In order to meet these challenges, strategic commissioning must focus upon whole systems 

of activity, and adopt methods that will guarantee coherent service delivery. Use of new 

methods of commissioning (e.g. ‘capitated’ budgets, prime providers for specific pathways, 

the encouragement of alliances or consortia of complementary provision, etc.) alongside the 

reemphasis of the centrality of General Practice in the future model of care, are essential 

prerequisites of a whole system solution to the issues of the moment.  

Commissioning partnerships must be pragmatic, and feature the best membership to 

address the particular areas of need. In Staffordshire, the Better Care Fund is immediately 

welcome in the context of the range of activity outlined above. Over the next five years, the 

BCF will enable more consolidated commissioning of better services and support for people, 

with consequent improvements in service effectiveness and qualitative outcomes. 

 

 

 

  

Page 25



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

18 
 

Case studies 

In practice the vision can be shown through individual stories that reflect some of the people 

in Staffordshire and their needs: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jenna is helped to plan for her future and to increase her independence skills, thus 

potentially offsetting the costs of future high-cost residential care for her when her mum is no 

longer able to care for her.  Mum is checked regularly and provided with respite care so that 

she can continue to act as carer to her daughter as long as she wants to and is able to.  

Both Jenna and her mum have a named care coordinator and a single patient and care 

record so they only tell their story once when needing care.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

My name 

is Jenna 

My name 

is John 

I have learning difficulties. I live at home with my mum who is 
called Rose. I am 50 and my mum is 76. I went to the local 
school and I have had different kinds of jobs, sometimes I 
haven’t worked. My mum and I have always looked out for each 
other. I recently had a cervical smear test.  I have noticed that 
mum is not remembering to do the things she used to do and we 
have started shouting at each other. She sometimes has 
problems getting to the toilet and I am not sleeping well. We had 
a big fight and mum fell over and hit her head. I called an 
ambulance. When we got to hospital they arranged for some 
people to come to the house for a few days to check mum was 
ok. Mum now gets someone who comes in everyday and I know 
who I can ring if I need help. We are thinking about what might 
happen in the future and I had some extra help for a short time to 
help me learn some of the jobs mum has always done. 

I am 86. I have type 2 diabetes, arthritis and need regular sight 
tests. I live in my own home, where I have lived for 30 years. My 
wife died 3 months ago. I get advice from my GP practice about 
my diabetes. In the last 6 weeks I called an ambulance twice 
because I had fallen at home, ending up at accident and 
emergency the second time. The intermediate care team visited 
me at home after discharge from A and E. They said they 
thought I might benefit from some extra support at home for a 
few weeks as I explained I had stopped doing most things as my 
wife was the organiser. I said I didn’t want lots of strangers 
coming into the house. 

They had a chat with the ‘floating support’ service who sent Alan 
and Mary to come and see me the next day. They sat down and 
we talked about the things I was finding hard to do and the fact 
that I was lonely. They organised for me to buy a personal alarm 
system and found out what happened at the community centre. I 
wanted to go back to church. Alan helped with both. I have some 
meals brought to the house now. I have had new glasses and I 
get a lift to the centre from a neighbour I had lost contact with, I 
go to church very week. Alan and Mary stopped coming after a 
few weeks. 

Page 26



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

19 
John is able to increase his ability to care for himself, and his GP is going to provide 

him with telehealth services, which monitor John’s diabetes and send the details 

straight to his GP.  This reduces the need for John to travel to visit his GP and increases 

his sense of being in control of his disease.  John’s GP surgery coordinates all his care 

needs and he has a single care record using his NHS number to make sure he only has 

to tell his story once. John knows that if he needs to go into hospital there will be support 

7 days a week so he doesn’t have to worry about becoming ill at the weekend.  The local 

community now provide support so John doesn’t need paid carers any more, but he feels 

confident about who to talk to if he should need more support in the future. 

b) Aims and objectives 

Please describe your overall aims and objectives for integrated care and provide information 

on how the fund will secure improved outcomes in health and care in your area. Suggested 

points to cover: 

• What are the aims and objectives of your integrated system? 

• How will you measure these aims and objectives? 

• What measures of health gain will you apply to your population?  

 

As noted in the previous section, the integrated work that will take place under the auspices 

of the Better Care Fund will adhere to some high-level strategic principles which will 

determine the way that future services are developed. Some of these pertain directly to 

existing activity in development, and the success of this activity will be measured in the 

following ways.  

� There will be greater emphasis on preventing ill health and promoting 
independence in the provision of all community-based NHS, social care and 
associated services.  

� Community-based services will centre on General Practice, which will be the focal 
point of coordination and support. 
 

• The ongoing development of the supportive network of NHS, social care and associated 
services (Integrated Care Teams (ICTs)) will become increasingly preventative in 
approach, and improved and better-coordinated support will help people to stay well 
and independent for as long as possible. 

• ICTs will centre on the GP Practice, which will be the focal point of the ‘community hub’ 
and co-ordinate the individual’s care, working with an extended team of specialist 
services 
 

By 2015/16, x-number of people using ICTs will report that their wellbeing and 

experience of care has improved since they were using the service. (Local measure to 

be established / range of qualitative measures to make up this % from new outcomes 

framework.) 

� Higher-level and better coordinated treatment, care and support will be available 
for people in their communities, and delivered where possible in peoples’ homes. 

� There will be comprehensive generalist community-based care and support for 
people with frailty, complex needs and/or long term physical and mental health 
conditions, complemented by specialist input as required. 

Page 27



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

20 
 
In Staffordshire, community NHS and social services are provided through an integrated 
health and social care trust: the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Partnership NHS Trust 
(SSOTP). Across Staffordshire, there exists a commitment to support people to live 
independently in their own homes through the development of Integrated Care Teams 
(ICTs), which will offer coordinated care and support to people with long term conditions 
(including dementia), frailty, and complex needs. Whilst these ICTs are at different stages of 
development in the separate CCG areas and are named differently, there are many common 
principles that they share. 
   

• In Staffordshire, we will be supporting people to live independently in their own 
homes through the development of Integrated Care Teams (ICTs), which will offer 
coordinated care and support to people with long term conditions (including dementia), 
frailty, and complex needs.  

• ICTs will utilise a risk profiling tool to identify their practice population most at risk of 
emergency admissions, and adopt a case management approach, through which a 
named practitioner will take responsibility for coordinating the range of formal and 
informal services and supports, enabling the individual to lead a healthy and independent 
life.  

• ICTs, in conjunction with improved Intermediate Care services and the increase of 
community capability, will ensure that people with needs of a higher level of acuity will be 
supported at home, thus minimising unnecessary admissions to acute sector and 
community hospital beds, and into residential and nursing care homes.  

 
By 2015/16, an estimated 24,000 people across Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent will 

be have an active care plan supported by ICTs.  

By 2015/16, there will be a x% reduction in the number of people permanently 

admitted to residential/nursing homes (indicator subject to change).  

By 2015/16, there will have been a sustained low number of delayed discharges from 
acute sector hospital to the community (indicator subject to change).  
 
� A significant amount of resource presently committed to non-elective urgent care 

services in the acute sector will shift to fund this community-based activity. 
 

• The approach to improving support for people in the community will release a significant 
volume of presently overcommitted non-elective acute sector activity, thus making it 
possible to give people the best support when they need it most. 

• In Staffordshire, the acute sector providers will benefit from a reduction in the volume of 
non-elective demand, allowing better use of bed capacity for more necessary and cost-
effective provision. 

• Improved and better coordinated community health and social care provision operating 
over the seven-day week will sustain more effective flow through the acute sector, 
and reduce delays in discharge.    

 
By 2015/16, 4,760 fewer non-elective admissions will be made to UHNS from the 
population of North Staffordshire. The equivalent goals for the Southern Staffordshire 
CCGs and their key acute sector providers is c.2,000 (South CCGs currently 
benchmark well for emergency admissions). 
 
By 2015/16, there will be a x% increase in the number of people benefiting from 
rehabilitation / reablement services (indicator subject to change).  
 

Page 28



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

21 
• Increasingly sophisticated processes of commissioning will be employed to 

incentivise community-based care and support, and to ensure joined up 
delivery of pathway-based services. 
 

• Increasingly, commissioners will be working together to produce evidence-based 
integrated strategies and specifications that will ensure that providers work better 
together for the people who they serve, and use the available resources to 
maximum benefit. 

• A pan-Staffordshire financial strategy is being developed, to gain a fuller appreciation 
of the range of interrelated existing and emergent financial and operational challenges 
for the county     

• Pan-Staffordshire approaches to IT, patient data management and risk stratification 
will be implemented. 

• Whole-system approaches to seven-day working will complement individual 
organisational performance improvement to guarantee optimum system efficiency. 
 

Through the use of ICT, patients and carers will be empowered to develop the knowledge, 
skills and confidence to care for themselves and their condition effectively, in order that they 
can retain their independence and quality of life. 
 
 
A selection of the following population-wide measures of health gain will be employed to 
demonstrate the success of this integrated approach. 
 

• Increase healthy life expectancy 

• Reduce gap in life expectancy between defined areas reflecting health inequalities 

• Reduce premature deaths from respiratory conditions, CVD, and other defined LTCs 

• Reduce inappropriate admissions for defined cohorts of people with LTCs, frailty and 
complex conditions  

• Improve health related quality of life for people with LTC's  

• Reduce inappropriate admissions for people with dementia  

• Reduce inappropriate length of stay for people with dementia  

• Improve patient experience  

• Demonstrable transition from 'reactive' to 'proactive' care approach  

• Ensure people feel supported to manage their condition 

• Enhance quality of life for carers 

• Better control over symptoms 

• Reduced days off work 
 

c) Description of planned changes 

Please provide an overview of the schemes and changes covered by your joint work 

programme, including:  

• The key success factors including an outline of processes, end points and time 

frames for delivery 

• How you will ensure other related activity will align, including the JSNA, JHWS, CCG 

commissioning plan/s and Local Authority plan/s for social care  

 

Page 29



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

22 
The Joint Staffordshire Health and Wellbeing (JHWS) strategy sets out the following five 

priority areas, three of which are directly relevant to the presenting issues of challenge. 

• Starting Well: Giving children the best start.  The highest priority in the Marmot Review 
was the aim to give every child the best start possible as this is crucial to reducing health 
inequalities across the course of someone’s life.  Key areas for action are (1) parenting, 
(2) school readiness; 

• Growing Well: Maximising potential and ability.  Children, young people and adults who 
are supported to reach their potential can have greater control over their lives and their 
health and wellbeing.  Key areas for action are (3) Improving educational attainment; (4) 
Reducing NEETs (5) Children in care; 

• Living Well: Enabling good lifestyle choices means that people in Staffordshire can lead 
long and healthy lives.  Key areas for action are (6) & (7) reducing harm from alcohol and 
drugs (8) Promoting healthy lifestyles and mental wellbeing;   

• Ageing Well: By helping people to live independently and be in control of their lives, we 
can support older people to be health and well.  Key areas for action are (9) Dementia 
(10) Falls prevention; (11) Frail Elderly with Long Term Conditions – providing good 
quality personalised care; 

• Ending Well:  Ensuring good quality care and support at the end of someone’s life.  Key 
areas for action are (12) ensuring someone is well cared for and where possible in a 
place of their own choice at the end of their life. 

 

Key success factors for the delivery of all activity which forms part of the BCF plan will be 

that the outcomes reflect positively against those set out in the JHWS, and deliver the 

outcomes and priorities stated above. 

We recognise that achieving our vision will mean delivering a radical shift in how our 

resources are spent.  We intend to focus on early help and prevention rather than reaction at 

a point of crisis.  But reducing demand on the acute hospital system, so that expenditure can 

be reduced, while maintaining the quality of care, will require a significant reshaping of that 

system.  We recognise the challenges involved in this.  The CCGs and local authority 

commissioners who make up Staffordshire County are committed to working together to 

create a marketplace, and effect the required behavioural and attitudinal change in the acute 

sector to ensure that this happens.  There must be a balanced mix of investments to protect 

current services, identify those at most risk and target services appropriately, while 

redirecting resources longer term to preventative and early intervention activity. 

Using the growing wealth of information available in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

for the area, locality mapping has taken place in North Staffordshire as part of the strategy to 

create a locality-based and focussed approach to community service delivery. Each locality 

has benefited from a detailed breakdown of its presenting health needs, demographic 

characteristics, level of deprivation and related information. Through these, future 

commissioning activity at the locality level will be locality-specific, in order to ensure the style 

and scope of community services meet the presenting needs of the population. 

A similar approach is taking place in southern Staffordshire, using the HWB to strengthen 

learning and shared action across the whole system, taking into account the work in Stoke-

on-Trent and North Staffordshire. 

There has been much recent work to engage both the people in receipt of, and those 

delivering, the services of the local health economy in Staffordshire. The aim has been to 

Page 30



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

23 
discuss with people what they think about local health, social care and associated 

services. Some of the key summary outcome themes coming from these engagement 

processes are listed below.   

• More avoidance of crisis/improved planning ahead – proactive/preventive 

• Better focus on all of the individuals’ needs 

• Services should value and support Carers 

• Single coordinator of care/case management 

• More support for those who can and want to self manage 

• Improved quality of domiciliary care provision (care, timing and reliability) 

• Improved timeliness of and access to services – improved accessibility of community 
services 

• Better access to GPs 

• Improved working between all agencies 

• Better continuity of care 

• Improved hospital discharge process 
• Improve the sharing of patient data to support the patients/Carers 

 

These outcome themes have been incorporated into the overarching principles for the future 

vision for health, social care and associated services in Staffordshire as set out in section 2 

a) above. 

Across Staffordshire, the vision set out for the BCF plan will be delivered through the 

following mechanisms: 

Targeted prevention and early help – Staffordshire already focuses on supporting people 

in their own homes, boosting their independence and preventing them from requiring higher 

levels of intervention.  The further development of step up (reducing the likelihood of needs 

escalating) and step down (enabling people to achieve a maximum independence and 

ensuring interventions are time limited and the likelihood of crisis reduced) services are key 

to expanding this ambition and will form part of the BCF linking with Integrated Care Teams 

and as part of the Intermediate Care service delivery set out below. 

Integrated Care Teams (ICTs) – providing joint case management, a single focal point for 

the person using the service, and supporting people with complex needs and circumstances 

to make sense of their situation and regularise their lives.  Diverse multi-agency teams 

(featuring NHS, social care, housing, community and voluntary sector contributors) will be 

based at locality levels comprising populations of between 25-30,000 people. 

Stoke-on-Trent and North Staffordshire CCGs Long Term Conditions Year of Care pilot 

programme will, by 2015/16 fully underpin the activity of the ICTs, first by supporting the 

early identification of people who would most benefit from such coordinated community 

support, and second with the implementation of ‘capitated’ community budgets, incentivising 

prime providers to take responsibility for individual peoples’ ‘year of care’, and encouraging 

the development of person-centred, community-based and cost-effective responses to 

peoples’ needs. This knowledge will be complemented by experience in the South around 

Personal Health Budgets. 

With the development of joined-up approaches to commissioning in upcoming years, all of 

the learning gained in parts of the county from localised and smaller-scale initiatives will be 

shared with partner CCGs.  

Page 31



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

24 
Intermediate Care - Whilst it is desirable to support people and meet their needs with 

services at the lowest level of acuity as near to their homes as possible, it is inevitable 

that people will on occasion need acute hospital care. However, people can stay for too long 

in acute sector services for want of the specific support that they need to regain their 

strengths and skills and return home.  

Intermediate Care responds to the needs of people requiring rehabilitation, reablement and 

recovery in the least dependent settings appropriate to their needs, resulting in improved 

outcomes for patients, reduction in unplanned attendances and admissions, and with a 

greater emphasis on community rather than bed based services. Joined-up Intermediate 

Care services are a key service component to ensure people stay healthy and independent 

for longer. 

In South Staffordshire, an innovative approach around Experience Led Commissioning has 

resulted in a new model of intermediate care; more focussed on supporting people back into 

communities. 

In 2013/14, Stoke-on-Trent and North Staffordshire CCGs have invested in the consolidation 

of, and staffing of Intermediate Care services. With the first phase of this activity complete, 

the improved capacity is making a positive difference to the overall effectiveness and 

efficiency of the urgent care system. Phase two (2014/15+) will see the alignment of social 

care Intermediate Care/reablement services with the NHS activity, and the consequent 

development of a single admission avoidance/discharge hastening pathway which will 

continue to shift the community service emphasis from being on discharge to being on 

admission avoidance. 

Frail and complex approach – the majority of users of NHS and social care services are 

older people, many experiencing frailty, often with complex needs and multiple long-term 

conditions. Present service configurations and their focus on specific health conditions do 

not always serve these people well, and they can become stuck in high-level services for 

want of a more coordinated approach to addressing their needs. Often, the experience of 

services for this cohort of users can be negative and disempowering. 

However, acute sector services do offer a level of safety and certainty to people with 

complex needs who are in crisis. If people of this cohort are to be properly supported in the 

community, the same level of support needs to be available there. In North Staffordshire, the 

community model of care specifies a specialist frail and complex MDT and ‘directorate’ that 

works across acute, community and primary care.  This is based on integrated and co-

ordinated provision that recognises the value of combining expertise from multiple 

organisations and crosses traditional boundaries to deliver continuity of care throughout the 

patient journey. 

Approach in North Staffordshire 

This Frail Complex capacity will work in conjunction with the Intermediate Care service and 

will provide access for GPs to consultant geriatricians. A ‘Star Chamber’ of senior clinicians 

in North Staffordshire has been established to further this work, some elements of which 

have commenced. The fully-fledged Frail Complex capacity will be mobilised in 2014/15. The 

support will 

Page 32



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

25 
• Be available to nursing care homes where it is safe and appropriate to manage a 

sick patient in the home 
• Ensure that people who are frail and become sick are managed at home with 

intensive community services  
• Provide step down services to enable people to be discharged to their home as soon as 

possible after an acute hospital admission      
 

System coordination / capacity ‘hub’ - This is the central point of entry and exit into/out of 

the urgent care system, and will coordinate the range of service capacity that contributes to 

it. Optimal system performance is secured through this active management of the ‘flow’, and 

the system is much more effective in circumstances of higher demand. The hub is clinically-

led, and is overseeing the development of regularised cross-economy assessment and 

decision-making methods that will ensure people receive the right care delivered in the right 

place at the right time.  

Approach in South Staffordshire 

In South Staffordshire there is a slightly different approach. Whilst recognising the need to 

ensure appropriate medical support to frail older people, there is an enhanced focus on 

building an asset based community development approach. 

The key elements in South Staffordshire are as follows. 

• Support to nursing homes 

• Community geriatrician support 

• Wellbeing hubs where older people can enjoy activities such as singing groups.  

• Scaling up programmes such as ‘ Lets Work Together’ which is a programme across 

agencies e.g. voluntary sector, police, fire and rescue and health which identifies 

individuals at risk and co-refers for relevant support 

Locality Based Capacity Building 

As a two tier authority Staffordshire recognises the unique role of districts and boroughs in 

delivering the HWS and the ambitions of BCF. The specific element in the BCF around 

Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) is a small part of their contribution.   District Councils are 

vital in the process of bringing in wider local partnerships, co-ordinating and facilitating local 

delivery to maximise opportunities and to ensure connectivity.  Districts have that local 

intelligence and can co-ordinate to ensure county/health commissioning intentions are 

translated effectively on the ground to reflect local need.  For example, councils will use 

levers around planning, leisure etc. to link into initiatives to support delivery e.g. Tai Chi 

classes for older people to improve balance and reduce falls.  

The Health & Wellbeing Strategy has a strong focus on empowering communities to become 

more cohesive and resilient, exploring opportunities to create connections in communities 

which help support the preventative agenda. Districts will play a major role in delivering this. 

Support to Carers 

Carers provide a significant role in community, and the draft Care Bill places a duty of Local 

Authorities to assess Carers regardless of the level of care that they provide.  While 

Page 33



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

26 
responsibility for assessment rests with the County Council, districts play an important 

role in supporting and signposting carers. 

By re-tendering all of our Carers services across Staffordshire, we will deliver more 

integrated services, which are aligned more appropriately with population needs. 

Primary Care Led Services 

Primary Care Led Services are currently being explored by South East Staffordshire & 

Seisdon Peninsula CCG, and offer a similar approach to the Integrated Local Care Teams in 

North Staffordshire. These Primary Care Led Services based around GPs will not only offer 

an assessment and diagnosis for the patient, but will support the patient with the 

management of their long term condition/s through to their end of life.  

This model is the Clinical Commissioning Groups’ and County Councils opportunity to deliver 

an integrated and seamless service wrapped around the patient, ensuring that they only 

have to tell their story once and are supported by a range of highly skilled professionals who 

put the needs of the patient at the centre rather than the condition. 

The exact service make-up differs from area to area depending on the key needs of the local 

populations, but broadly speaking will incorporate a range of services including, medical, 

nursing support, practice pharmacy, social care, end of life specialists and Allied Health 

Professionals. This will be a system wide and complex programme of change which will take 

a number of months to define, commission and deliver. 

Mental Health Services Transformation 

In April 2014, we will have a clearly articulated strategy, co-produced with providers to 

describe how we want services to respond differently to those suffering mental distress. As 

with other client groups, the aim is to shift care to prevention to reduce the need for more 

specialist services. We will significantly increase the range of psychological therapies 

citizens can access and improve access to community mental health services.  

Transforming Cancer and End of Life Care Programme 

The Pioneer project covering the majority of the County will deliver significant benefits in 

terms of care coordination for people at the end of life. Clearly this will need to link closely to 

the core ILTs.  

Delivering Digital Technology at Scale 

Partners will take a coordinated approach to digital health and social care to ensure we 

maximise benefit and pool expertise. Linked Programmes of Work 

The Staffordshire Health and Social Care economy has a solid foundation based upon joint 

working, a clear strategic direction and priority initiatives to deliver. We recognise, however, 

we are on a journey and need further pieces of the jigsaw before we can have full assurance 

about our delivery. Further work is required to model the impact of these changes and create 

a joint plan which creates a sustainable system going forward.  

Page 34



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

27 
There are a number of pieces of work going on which will move us to a position by the 

summer of 2014 where further clarity is achieved.  

County Council Strategy – work is being undertaken to identify priority outcomes and a 

plan to deliver a fundamental shift in public expectations over a generation. This will frame 

the delivery plan in terms of our ambition to support people to take more control of their lives. 

CCG Five Year strategies – the CCGs collectively are in the process of articulating their 

five year vision and delivery strategy. The work to support this will include detailed modelling 

of the impact of changes which will underpin more detailed plans for the BCF. 

Strategic Service Review – We recognise there is a disconnect between commissioner 

plans and provider plans in term of sustainability. A strategic review has just begun to clearly 

identify and address inconsistency in commissioner and provider assumptions.  

 

 

An overview of the timeline of the anticipated implementation of aspects of the programme is 

set out below: 

Timeline for BCF plan implementation 

Page 35



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

28 

 

 

 

 

 

Scheme sub-element of scheme narrative 2014/15

1 Existing NHS Transfers

2
Care Bill / transformation / care 
expansion assessment of financial impact and re-evaluation of funding sources

3 CCG reablement

develop co-produced service re-design
impement redesigned service

5 DFGs
integration at County level of housing adaptations, leading to more consistent approaches, 
improved service delivery and reduced delays

6 ASC Capital Grant
7 Community Equipment programme continues

Programme expanded to increase the use of community-based services, reducing the impact on 
acute care through a specialist team offering intensive support services.
work with market and independent sector to co-design supported living options for the future.  
Work with housing and district/borough councils to increase opportunities and reduce the need for 
intensive residential care packages
Integration Pioneer programme working with Macmillan across Staffordshire established and 
developing a range of innovative approaches to provide Principal Provider approach working with 
patients, carers, providers & commissioners to co-design outcomes-based services for the next 10 
years.

prime provider model in place
delivery of services to achieve outcomes set

10 Flexicare Homes expansion of flexi-care homes, offering better choice of approapriate accommodation for people

Intermediate Care, 
reablement, rehabilitation

Service specification developed, Tender planning
new service in place

Long Term Conditions Service specification developed, Tender planning
new service in place

Stoke on Trent and North 
Staffs Intermediate Care 
pilot

programme will see the alignment of social care Intemediate care/reablement services with the 
NHS activity, and the consequent development of a single admission avoidance/discharge 
hastening pathway which will continue to shift the community service emphasis from being on 
discharge to being on admission avoidance.

North Staffs & Stoke on 
Trent Intermediate 
Locality Care Teams integrated locality teams in place and operational
Long Term Conditions 
Year of Care pilot started
staffordshire hospital 
avoidance scheme

exploration of schemes, focusing initially on the Brighton & Hove approach to hospital triage teams 
to steer people away from A&E and reduce non-elective admissions.

implement pilot
GP-based Integrated Care 
Teams in place
Falls Prevention 
programme work continues with Districts, Public Health and CCGs to coordinate and expand offer
Domiciliary Care 
programme evaluation of existing good practice, develoment of pilot programme

Personal Health Budgets expansion of PHB programme

Rehabilitation and recovery services for people with complex mental health needs mapped and 
reviewed, for gap analysis.  These services are aimed at reducing the time people need to spend in 
ward-based services, and improving the support within the community.

pathway and services in place

Dementia care
Review of current service delivery to assess where more integrated services could be implemented 
working with the 3rd sector and NHS providers to co-design delivery models.

14 Assistive Technology / Telehealth Telecare/health

Digital Programme Board driving the adoption of technology to improve outcomes, transform 
services and create efficiencies at scale and pace.  Will include:  Telecare; telehealth; mobile apps 
and online self-management support; clinical video conferencing and tele-diagnostics
manage implementation and benefits tracking for live integrated services and developing next 
stage of joint commissioning plans in line with local needs, JSNA and HWS

further development and implementation of the next wave of pilots and programmes to deliver 
our vision for integrated care, taking heed of pilot and programme outcomes from 2015/15 and 
prior.

Carers support 
programme

Rehab and recovery

Carers4

Mental Health incl. Dementia12

overarching15

Frailty / Complex Needs / LTC / 
OP

11

End of Life Care9

Learning Disabilties8

Page 36



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

29 
 

 

Through current governance and programme management mechanisms now being put in 

place, activity in the County will be carefully managed to ensure alignment between the 

JHWS, JSNA and CCG and Local Authority commissioning plans.  There is a long history of 

joint commissioning, through a previously established Joint Commissioning Unit.  This 

arrangement has been replaced recently with a clear governance structure around 

integrated commissioning, linking directly to the Health and Wellbeing Board.   

The JSNA informs the JHWS, and supports the identification of priority areas for action.  The 

JHWS is a five year strategy but is reviewed on an annual basis in the light of new data to 

check the priorities remain appropriate.   

d) Implications for the acute sector 

Set out the implications of the plan on the delivery of NHS services including clearly 

identifying where any NHS savings will be realised and the risk of the savings not being 

realised. You must clearly quantify the impact on NHS service delivery targets including in 

the scenario of the required savings not materialising. The details of this response must be 

developed with the relevant NHS providers.  

 

The plan is in early stages of development and as such, much of the work to quantify 

potential NHS savings and discussions with NHS partners remains work to be undertaken 

over the coming months.   

However, there is a clear desire to focus on early intervention as expressed in the 

Staffordshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy (Doc1), while at the same time, Staffordshire 

hospitals are suffering from increasing budgetary constraints.  These levers and pressures 

mean that finding ways to reduce demand on the NHS through the development of 

community and social care services is a priority across the health and social care economy.  

Targeting BCF activity on areas which will have most impact on reducing hospital 

admissions, length of stay and delayed discharge is a given, and the next steps are working 

this plan through in more detail with NHS partners. 

Some early signs of potential for savings are set out below, these are indications from 

individual schemes which form part of the BCF plan. 

In North Staffordshire, the Cross Economy Transformation Programme will shift £12m-£20m 

of non-elective spend from being regularly committed to the acute sector and community 

hospitals to being spent on community-based services, as described above. This will release 

pressure on the presently overused acute facilities, and allow UHNS to use valuable bed 

space on more cost-effective specialist elective work. 

For South Staffordshire CCG, the savings to the NHS are estimated to be in the region of 

£15m p.a. from 2015/16 onwards.  The work focuses on Long Term Conditions, Frail Elderly 

Page 37



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

30 
and improving the quality of services through re-ablement and carers support among 

other initiatives.  . Further work is required to model this in detail in all parts of the 

County.  

An expansion of Flexicare homes in the County is expected to have a positive impact on GP 

visits, A&E visits, hospital admissions, outpatient attendances, and mental health episodes.  

The benefit to the NHS is estimated at £2,175 per apartment (average 1.5 people) p.a.  

There are risks inherent in this scheme in that sufficient funding may not be secured to make 

the housing developments viable, and the benefits to the acute sector would thereby be lost. 

The integration of funding and delivery of major adaptations across the County is expected 

to result in improved service delivery and reduced delays, resulting in benefits to the NHS in 

the region of £0.5m p.a. on spend of £2.5m p.a.  Risks apparent are the potential for delays 

in assessments or reductions in funding which would reduce the number of adaptations. 

The county-wide scheme to facilitate LD supported living placements following discharge 

from hospitals is expected to save £700k p.a. in reduced delayed discharge. 

Hospital attendances and delayed discharges are expected to be reduced also from the 

Dementia programme, although this remains to be quantified. 

A county-wide approach to telecare has just been launched as part of the BCF plan and this 

is expected to deliver savings to the NHS which will be quantified as part of the early stages 

of this work. 

Discussions with the NHS providers to agree potential for savings in these areas have yet to 

take place, with the exception of the LD and mental health plans where ongoing discussions 

are already taking place as part of regular contract and commissioning discussions. 

The five year planning process is being used as a vehicle to model the impact and engage 

with providers more effectively.  

e) Governance 

Please provide details of the arrangements are in place for oversight and governance for 

progress and outcomes. 

 

Current arrangements are that the HWB has overarching responsibility for the achievement 
of the BCF plan, with executive responsibility delegated to the Staffordshire Senior Officers 
Group.  This is a mature group, with well-established working relationships, whose 
membership reflects that of the HWB with representation of senior officers from Councils, 
CCGs, Public Health, Police Commissioner and HealthWatch. 

For delivery of the Better Care Fund Plan, governance may be reviewed with some changes 
to the existing structure as set out below: 

The Senior Officers Group (SOG) will act as the collaborative management committee with 
executive responsibility for the Better Care Fund, making recommendations to the Health 
and Wellbeing Board and local commissioning and finance committees/board where 
appropriate for agreement.   

Page 38



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

31 
Any decisions affecting the delivery of local services (CCG aligned) will be agreed by 
local commissioning and finance committees/board as appropriate to enable partners to 
exercise their statutory duties before final sign off at the Health and Wellbeing Board.  
Commissioners must clearly understand arrangements and key personnel at locality level to 
ensure local delivery opportunities are co-ordinated and maximised. 

The SOG (or separate partnership board if required) will: - 

• Identify services, funding and strategic objectives where a PAN CCG/county 
approach or a locally specific CCG approach is required as appropriate 

• Oversee the implementation of the projects for review and redesign within 
geographical areas as appropriate 

• Oversee the co-ordination of appropriate engagement with local patients, clinicians 
and commissioning networks 

• Ensure quality patient/user care and the best value for services 

• Monitor the performance (agreed outputs, outcomes) and financial aspects at a 
local/county level 

• Review the effectiveness of the collaboration 

• Establish working groups as appropriateThe BCF will be delivered through a pooled 
budget under s75 arrangements.  Discussions have begun as to how this s75 
agreement will be arranged and which organisation(s) will be responsible for holding 
the fund. 

 3. NATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 

a) Protecting social care services 

Please outline your agreed local definition of protecting adult social care services. 

Protecting social care services in Staffordshire means ensuring that those in need within our 

local communities continue to receive the support they need, in a time of growing demand 

and budgetary pressures.  Whilst maintaining current eligibility criteria is one aspect of this, 

our primary focus is on developing new forms of joined up care which help ensure that 

individuals remain healthy and well, and have maximum independence, with benefits to both 

themselves and their communities, and the local health and care economy as a whole. By 

proactively intervening to support people at the earliest opportunity and ensuring that they 

remain well, are engaged in the management of their own wellbeing, and wherever possible 

enabled to stay within their own homes, our focus is on protecting and enhancing the quality 

of care by tackling the causes of ill-health and poor quality of life, rather than simply focusing 

on the supply of services. 

Please explain how local social care services will be protected within your plans 

Funding currently allocated under the s256 transfers from NHS England to County Council 

has been used to enable the local authority to sustain the current level of eligibility criteria 

Page 39



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

32 
and to provide timely assessment, care management and review and commissioned 

services to clients who have substantial or critical needs and information and signposting 

to those who are not FACS eligible. This will need to be sustained, if not increased, within 

the funding allocations for 2014/15 and beyond if this level of offer is to be maintained.  New 

requirements to be placed on services which will have financial impacts will be around 

delivery of seven day services and the new Care Bill which requires additional assessments 

to be undertaken for people who did not previously access Social Services.  Since the 

additional costs of these developments have already been factored into the baseline grant 

provided by DCLG, implying significant reductions in core funding available for existing 

social care services, the County Council will be reliant on re-focusing of funding either from 

within the BCF or from DH to meet these requirements. 

b) 7 day services to support discharge 

Please provide evidence of strategic commitment to providing seven-day health and social 

care services across the local health economy at a joint leadership level (Joint Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy). Please describe your agreed local plans for implementing seven day 

services in health and social care to support patients being discharged and prevent 

unnecessary admissions at weekends 

 

The recent calls for better service models in hospitals at weekends and to deliver the NHS 

offer, has a focus on Acute Trusts and hospital patient care at weekends. 

The Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Partnership Trust (SSoTP) which covers all 

Staffordshire LAs and CCGs already delivers in most areas an integrated Community 

Intervention Service providing crisis, admission avoidance and rehabilitative services, these 

services being accessible 7 days a week. These services enable a 24 hour response with 

hospital and community elements providing clinical and social intervention to maximise 

independence, prevent acute admission and the need for long term care, and facilitate 

hospital discharge. These integrated teams include Service Managers, Team Leaders, 

Nurses, Social Workers, Occupational Therapists, Physiotherapists, Health Care Assistant, 

Integrated Support Worker and Community Psychiatric Nurses. 

In the North of the economy a 7 day working group has been established as a sub group of 

the Urgent Care Operational Group, in order to focus on further opportunities for enhancing 

7 day services.  A full report on this is attached as Doc2. 

Private and voluntary sector social care providers are already contracted to deliver services 

on a 7-day basis. 

Page 40



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

33 
c) Data sharing 

Please confirm that you are using the NHS Number as the primary identifier for 

correspondence across all health and care services.  

Yes all health and care systems will use the NHS Number.  The proposed integrated care 

record will use the NHS number as the primary identifier for all NHS and Social Care 

activities. 

If you are not currently using the NHS Number as primary identifier for correspondence 

please confirm your commitment that this will be in place and when by  

Staffordshire County Council (SCC) has been using the NHS Demographic Batch Services 

(DBS) for the past year or so to enable us to match, collect and store NHS numbers for adult 

services clients. We have been carrying this out prior to go live of CareDirector, the new 

social care IT system, and by September 2013 had achieved approximately 94% of clients 

having a valid NHS number stored in our system. The number is then available for staff and 

partners to use the NHS number on relevant correspondence and this auto populates from 

the IT system on to key assessment documentation, plans etc.  

Staffordshire County Council has a contract option to work with their IT supplier (CareWorks) 

to aim for PDS (Personal Demographics Service) integration in the coming year to enable us 

to search live and retrieve NHS numbers and related demographic data directly from the 

NHS. CareWorks are currently working with Coventry City Council and Connecting for 

Health on a first of type integration. SCC already has an N3 connection in place and is close 

to achieving the prerequisite 95% of clients already having a valid NHS number through our 

DBS work.    

Please confirm that you are committed to adopting systems that are based upon Open APIs 

(Application Programming Interface) and Open Standards (i.e. secure email standards, 

interoperability standards (ITK))  

Staffordshire partners are committed to using systems based upon Open API's and 

standards and are keen to explore the opportunities for greater systems integration and 

information sharing.  

Please confirm that you are committed to ensuring that the appropriate IG Controls will be in 

place. These will need to cover NHS Standard Contract requirements, IG Toolkit 

requirements, professional clinical practise and in particular requirements set out in Caldicott 

2. 

Staffordshire County Council have comprehensive IG policies/procedures in place, however 

are not accredited to the IG toolkit, which is primarily a Health Sector requirement. We are 

prepared to make an application for accreditation and committing to attaining the Toolkit, 

Caldicott 2 et al.  

Page 41



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

34 
d) Joint assessment and accountable lead 

professional 

Please confirm that local people at high risk of hospital admission have an agreed 

accountable lead professional and that health and social care use a joint process to assess 

risk, plan care and allocate a lead professional.  

Please specify what proportion of the adult population are identified as at high risk of hospital 

admission, what approach to risk stratification you have used to identify them, and what 

proportion of individuals at risk have a joint care plan and accountable professional.  

A number of developments are taking place in relation to joint assessments and lead 

professionals with the aim of creating an integrated case management approach utilising risk 

stratification tools and approaches.  A previous CQUIN existed in relation to Case 

Management in 2012/13. 

 

There is partnership working in place between assessment teams and GP practices to 

implement risk stratification approaches.  Whilst in some areas of the County the model of 

care is supported by a detailed service specification, in other areas this is not the case, there 

are however a set of generally accepted assumptions about what the model of care is 

intended to achieve: -  

 

• Coordination of resources around individuals with multiple chronic disease 
from one single health or social care professional. Thus recognising the 
growth in numbers of these individuals and the limitations of traditional ‘single 
disease specific’ strategies.  

 

• Reducing the impact of these individuals on acute care resource through 
prevention (admission avoidance) and slowing of disease progression. 

 

• Potential efficiencies in the delivery of care, particularly against a back drop of 
rising demand from an ageing population and increase in multiple chronic 
disease prevalence.  

 

Factors that influence the level and intensity of activity within the model are: -  
 

• The accuracy of the case finding process where the main aim is to prevent 
acute care episodes. 

• The degree to which identified individuals are already known to community 
resources and the implications this has on capacity to implement the model of 
care. 

• The degree to which GP’s influence the implementation of the model of care 
within their individual practice. 

 

The local health economy in the north is developing an integrated risk stratification tool that 

will support the work of the integrated locality care team and the delivery of the LTC Year of 

Care project. This project will deliver a joint, integrated risk identification tool that will ensure 

that the people at the highest anticipated risk will become known and can be supported in an 

integrated, preventative way.  MDTs are in place and most surgeries are now engaged with 

MDTs taking place across both Newcastle and Moorlands that include GPs, Community 

Page 42



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

35 
matrons, District Nurses and Social Care. Their frequency varies dependent on size of 

practice, demographics and preference. In Newcastle approx. 124 individuals are 

subject to active case management and 121 individuals in Moorlands. 

Progress continues in the south of the County, and SSoTP, which delivers assessment and 

case management is working closely with respective CCGs. In Cannock, admission of 

individuals to the model of care in Cannock has being significantly more straightforward 

given that resource for case management was integral to the Adult Community Nursing 

Service service-specification, which was commissioned in 2010. Within the Cannock locality 

a focus on the top 1% of respective practice populations and the identification of suitable 

individuals has enabled in Nov 2013, 370 care plans to be produced for individuals requiring 

case management. 

 

A range of information has been agreed with respective CCGs to be collated these include 

as examples 

 

• Number of individuals identified and referred for case management per practice 

• Number of individuals opting out of case management at initial stage per practice 

• Number of individuals assigned a case manager within the Trust (split between 
health and social care) 

• Number of individuals with completed care plan following assessment 

• Number of individuals with open episode of care/number of patients stepped down 

• Number of MDTs held per practice  
 

Alongside a range of performance measures 

 

• Percentage of care plans in place 

• Percentage of individuals seeing a reduction in risk score 

• Percentage of individuals/carers reporting they are confident in managing their own 
health 

• Percentage of individuals reporting an improvement in quality of life 

• Percentage of individuals achieving goals set 

• Admission avoidance 
 

SSoTP under Phase 2 of its integrated services programme will focus on developing a 

standardised approach, taking lessons learnt from both North and South approaches to fully 

integrate its case management and ‘single assessment’.  In anticipation a model for 

integrated Health and Social Care Case Management has been developed. This model 

offers a definition of Case Management, its principles and case management approaches for 

individual’s dependant on their level of need. The model has defined a case management 

competencies framework and been approved for further exploration and development by 

Phase 2. A project steering group will be established with the following objectives: 

• Identify the people who meet the different levels in the triangle of need and agree who 
will need to be case managed (e.g. through appropriate risk stratification, dependency 
weighting and assessment of complexity of need etc.) 

• Clarify criteria for who is best placed to case manage different groups of people 

• Develop systems and networks that ensure case managers can easily access all 

Page 43



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

36 
external services they will need to be effective. 

• Develop two pilot sites for integrated case management to test out what works and 
how to overcome barriers to implementation. 

• Involve stakeholders such as individuals, carers, CCGs, local health and social care 
independent and voluntary resources. 

• Ensure a named worker/professional system is in place for people on the lowest level of 
the triangle who do not need intensive case management or who just require a single 
service. 

• Ensure competency framework for case management is in place and understood. 

• Develop training and development programme for professionals who will take on case 
management  

• Build competency framework for case management into appraisal system for 
professionals who will case manage and use them as a tool for personal and 
professional development. 

• Use the case management competencies to support integrated service redesign and 
performance management 

There is tremendous potential with this model for developing a truly integrated model for 
case management including risk stratification. For Adult Social Care approx. 20,000 people 
are in receipt of services within the County, approximately 10,000 of these in receipt of some 
form of community based provision, a proportion of which may benefit from more intensive 
case management approaches based on risk stratification. 

4. RISKS 

Please provide details of the most important risks and your plans to mitigate them. This 

should include risks associated with the impact on NHS service providers 

 

Risk Risk rating Mitigating Actions 

CCGs are unable to make the 3% savings 
required 

Medium  

CCGs are unable to reduce hospital intake 
leading to inability of partners to make 
savings intended through the plan 

High Gradual transformation with 
staged approach to investing 
in preventative options. 
 
Negotiation on new contracts 
with Hospitals agreeing caps 
on intake numbers and 
shared risk with Hospitals on 
overspends 

Money going into BCF already tied up in 
mainstream services, therefore cannot fund 
additional activity 

Low Plans already in place for 
recommissioning of services 
at lower cost which will fund 
expansion of preventative / 
community investment 

County Council social care budget being 
cut, therefore funding may have to be used 

Medium As above 

Page 44



  
   

  
 

Staffordshire BCF Appendix A v 10.1 

  

 

37 
to protect existing services 

Potential impact of Mid-Staffordshire NHS 
Foundation Trust changes where redesign 
is focused on maintaining financial viability 
of Hospital rather than supporting changes 
set out in BCF 

High Gradual transformation with 
staged approach to investing 
in preventative options. 
 
Negotiation on new contracts 
with Hospitals agreeing caps 
on intake numbers and 
shared risk with Hospitals on 
overspends 

Different local population needs may 
prevent development of Staffordshire-wide 
solutions 

High Local solutions will be 
appropriate in many areas, 
and options for geographical 
approaches will be part of the 
service delivery planning 

Lack of clear national guidance on the 
following may prevent signatory partners 
gaining sufficient assurance to approve 
plans. 

• Arrangements for (S75) budget pooling. 

• Establishment of reasonable local 
improvement trajectories and targets. 

• Mechanism for determining ‘failure’, 
apportioning responsibility, and 
withholding resource. 

High LAT to accept ‘work in 
progress’ commitments within 
Feb 14th submission, to lobby 
nationally for answers to key 
questions, and to support the 
development of locally 
relevant trajectories/targets 
where applicable.  

National benchmarks/baselines upon which 
performance is to be premised may present 
unrealisable trajectories/targets for local 
health economy/CCG areas. BCF will not 
be approved by H+WBB if this is the case. 
(See appended metrics document)  

High LAT to support the 
development of locally 
relevant trajectories/targets 
where applicable. 

 

 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



 

  

  

 

1 

Staffordshire Better Care Fund 

First Draft submission – covering note 

 

This document is a first draft, developed by the partners to the Staffordshire Health and 
Wellbeing Board. 
 
It represents an initial response to the opportunities and challenges presented by the Better 
Care Fund. It is explicitly work-in-progress, subject to further consultation with key 
stakeholders including our citizens, voluntary and community sector, primary, acute and 
community health providers, and our social service teams. Any numbers included at this 
stage are best current estimates, based on work to date; and these, together with our overall 
proposals, will invariably evolve and change through the consultation process and as our 
knowledge and understanding grows. 
 
The Better Care Fund has a focus on Older Adults at a national policy level however our 
local Staffordshire intention is to include mental health, learning disability and equipment 
services, where pooled or joint arrangements currently exist.  It should be stressed here that 
this provides us with an opportunity to take fuller advantage of the good work already done 
to date in recent years around integrating resources, commissioning activity, etc. across 
these areas. 
 
This Better Care Fund plan is the start of a journey and we recognise the challenges and 
further work required to develop this vision which is based squarely on the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy, into detailed work plans and implementation over the coming years.  
Development of the NHS 2 and 5 year plans will be a major part of this process. 
 
Appendix A provides the narrative section, while Appendix B provides the financial 

breakdowns and metrics proposed. 

A number of supporting documents have been included which provide further background 

detail. 

 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



  

Organisation

Holds the 

pooled 

budget? 

(Y/N)

Spending on 

BCF schemes 

in 14/15

Minimum 

contribution 

(15/16)

Actual 

contribution 

(15/16)

Staffordshire County Council 0 1,972,000 6,422,140 

District/Borough Councils 0 3,804,000 3,804,000 

CCG

North Staffordshire 4,159,200 13,977,000 17,000,868 

Stafford & Surrounds 2,856,926 8,485,000 14,942,142 

Cannock Chase 2,544,986 8,048,000 13,008,088 

East Staffordshire 2,389,521 7,480,000 14,104,128 

South East Staffordshire & 

Seisdon Peninsula
4,283,370 12,341,000 23,354,486 

BCF Total 16,234,003 56,107,000 92,635,852 

Contingency plan: 2015/16 Ongoing

Notes:

1) plans for additional budget for LD spend to be included, est. £70m+

Outcome 2

Planned savings (if targets 

fully achieved)Maximum support needed 

for other services (if targets 

Finance - Summary

For each contributing organisation, please list any spending on BCF schemes in 2014/15 and the 

minimum and actual contributions  to the Better Care Fund pooled budget in 2015/16.

Approximately 25% of the BCF is paid for improving outcomes.  If the planned improvements 

are not achieved, some of this funding may need to be used to alleviate the pressure on 

Outcome 1

Planned savings (if targets 

fully achieved)Maximum support needed 

for other services (if targets 

  

P
age 49



  

2) plans for additional budget for End of Life Care and Cancers to be included, est. £70m+

  

P
age 50



  

BCF Investment

Lead 

provider

Recurrent
Non-

recurrent
Recurrent

Non-

recurrent
Recurrent

Non-

recurrent
Recurrent

Non-

recurrent
BCF01 Reablement/Enablement/Intermediate 

Care
16,234,003 23,363,108 

BCF02 Carers 692,311 

BCF03 Disabilities Facilities Grant 3,804,000 

BCF04 ASC Capital Grant 1,972,000 

BCF05 Community Equipment 4,006,689 

BCF06 Admission Avoidance and Dealyed 

Discharges
8,077,289 

BCF07 Service Review 2,574,000 

BCF08 Learning Disabilities (Autism) 3,796,339 

BCF9 End of Life 157,492 

BCF10 Flexicare Homes 1,500,000 

BCF11 Mental Health (inc Dementia) 39,568,840 

BCF12 Cancer 148,469 

BCF13 Palliative Care 2,975,315 

BCF14 Fraility/Complex Needs/LTC/OP

BCF15 Assistive Technology/Telehealth

Total 16,234,003 0 92,635,852 

Notes:

1) plans for additional budget for LD spend to be included, est. £70m+

2) plans for additional budget for End of Life Care and Cancers to be included, est. £70m+

Please list the individual schemes on which you plan to spend the Better Care Fund, including any investment in 2014/15.  Please expand the table if necessary.

2014/15 spend 2014/15 benefits 2015/16 spend 2015/16 benefits

  

P
age 51



Outcomes & Metrics DRAFT  

Metrics Current Baseline

as at September 2013

Performance underpinning 

April 2015 payment

Performance underpinning 

October 2015 payment

For each metric, please provide details of the assurance process underpinning the agreement of the performance plans

Outcomes and metrics

For each metric other than patient experience, please provide details of the expected outcomes and benefits of the scheme and how these will be measured.

Permanent Admission to res/nursing care:  Reduction of 1% per 100,000 population by March 2015.   The 2012/13 baseline is low compared to the current position; admissions have 

already increased by around 4% from the baseline in the first half of 2013/14.  Demographic change alone is likely to add a further 1% by March 2015, therefore whilst this target represents a 

decrease in real terms of 2%, it represents a decrease of at least 6% from the current position.  Reablement:  Maintain current success rate (which is high compared to other authorities) 

despite demographic pressures, without reducing the numbers offered the service.  DToCs: - reduce at a rate equivalent to bringing Social Care / Joint delays down to current national 

average within two years.  Injuries due to falls:  This is increasing at a rate of 5% per annum at present.  Our target is to cut this in half.  This will be carried out by directed work through 

Public Health with Districts and CCG's.  Benefits will be measured using the same measures as for setting these targets.

For the patient experience metric, either existing or newly developed local metrics or a national metric (currently under development) can be used for October 2015 payment. Please see the 

technical guidance for further detail. If you are using a local metric please provide details of the expected outcomes and benefits and how these will be measured, and include the relevant 

details in the table below

National Metric to be adopted

The metrics have been supplied by Staffordshire County Council Performance unit.  All measures and targets will be monitored by HWB or under delegated authority to the Programme 

managers.  Targets set must be agreed jointly with delivery partners and therefore must be treated as draft targets until agreement is reached with providers.

If planning is being undertaken at multiple HWB level please include details of which HWBs this covers and submit a separate version of the metric template both for each HWB and for the 

multiple-HWB combined

n/a

as at September 2013 April 2015 payment October 2015 payment

Metric Value 661.1 654.5

Numerator                                              1,094 1,155

Denominator 165,475 176,477

( April 2012 - March 2013 ) ( April 2014 - March 2015 )

Metric Value 85.90% 85.90%

Numerator 455 >=455

Denominator 530 >=530

( April 2012 - March 2013 ) ( April 2014 - March 2015 )

Metric Value 256.1 241.3 231.9

Numerator 15,845 15,023 9,689

Denominator 687,473 691,771 696,351

(April to December 2013) ( April - December 2014 ) ( January - June 2015 )

Metric Value 173.1 TBC TBC

Numerator 8,922 TBC TBC

Denominator 859,037 TBC TBC

(April to September 2013) ( April - September 2014 ) ( October 2014 - March 2015 )

( insert time period ) ( insert time period )

Metric Value                                              1,760                                              1,834                                                  1,858 

Numerator                                              3,443                                              3,653                                                  3,717 

Denominator                                         160,620                                         168,000                                             170,000 

January 2013 - December 2013 January 2014-December 2014 July 2014-June 2015

Metric Value 35.3% TBC TBC

Permanent admissions of older people (aged 65 and over) to residential and 

nursing care homes, per 100,000 population
N/A

Patient / service user experience  [for local measure, please list actual 

measure to be used. This does not need to be completed if the national 

metric (under development) is to be used]

N/A

Injuries due to falls in people aged 65 and over (age standardised rate per 

100,000 population)

Proportion of adult social care users who have as much social contact as 

they would like

Proportion of older people (65 and over) who were still at home 91 days 

after discharge from hospital into reablement / rehabilitation services
N/A

Delayed transfers of care from hospital per 100,000 population (average per 

month)

Avoidable emergency admissions (composite measure)

$pj53bef0.xlsx  

P
age 52



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Qtr 3 Performance Report -Update for questions raised at the Transformation 
and Resources Overview &Scrutiny Committee meeting 22 January 2014 
 
At the last meeting in January several questions were asked with regard to various 
indicators and some of the data in the Performance report (Appendix B). The 
purpose of this paper is to respond to any of the outstanding questions with 
additional information or explanations. 
 
 
Ref 1.1.2 Percentage of food establishments which are broadly compliant with 
good hygiene law. The question raised was whether a target of 85% is too low and 
should it be higher for this indicator. 
 
Comment: This indicator has consistently achieved over the target of 85% and the 
target could be raised as suggested to 90%. However the performance of this 
indicator is not in meeting the target but as information indicator advising how 
compliant the businesses inspected are and advises delivery of a programme of 
inspections. Although information and support is given to food establishments, the 
result is reliant on the standards achieved by the individual businesses inspected and 
not the service which inspects. The service supports the businesses inspected and 
do educate businesses to improve their compliance but this is a longer term impact. 
 
 
 
Ref 1.3.2 Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and 
composting. This indicator was off target in this quarter. 
 
Comment: The lower figure for the third quarter is a result of the lack of brown bin 
collections during this period and follows trends of previous years when organic 
waste is reduced.   
 
Outcome 2.1 -There was a request that more information is provided on where we 
get the data from in this section. 
 
Comment: All of the demographic data in 2.1, with the exception of NEET data, is 
taken from the NOMIS (this is not an acronym but a brand) website. NOMIS is the 
provider of official labour market statistics and will be quoted often wherever up-to-
date information on employment/benefits is published. 
 
Some of the issues around the data for business survival is the availability of recent 
data. There is data for 2012 but this is only for regions and not at local authority level. 
The observatory website at the county also uses the data, like us, from 2011 for 
business start up and failure information. 
  
 
Ref 2.1.3 Percentage of working age people claiming key out of work benefits. 
The comment raised was that  this should be a 'down' arrow. 
 
This is the percentage of working age population (16-64) who are claiming JSA, ESA 
or Incapacity Benefit, lone parent and other income related benefits. The 
performance was previously compared to the West Midlands and national results, 
where it was in line with their increase, but the arrow has been replaced now by a 
downward trend arrow. 
   
 

Page 53

Agenda Item 5



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Ref 2.1.4 The level of 16-19 year olds Not in Education, Employment or 
Training. The question raised was whether the information will be provided. 
 
There appears to have been some technical difficulties with the system at the county, 
but the NEET figure for November 2013 for the Newcastle district was 6.4% which 
equates to 113 young people at this time. Future information will now be requested 
on a regular basis from a new contact and will hopefully resolve the problem. 
 
 
Ref 3.2.3 Number of people attending the local theatre. This information was not 
available for the Scrutiny meeting in January but was updated for the Cabinet report. 
The question raised was where does the information come from and that the figures 
appeared to be low.  
 
Audience & participation numbers for October - December 2013 were 44,021 (total 
for year: 82,407) for ticketed attendances and supplied by the theatre.  There were 
also 1,343 participants in Education and New Vic Borderlines projects and as stated 
this was around 7% ahead of last year. These numbers reported do not include 
visitors to bars and restaurants, exhibitions, meetings and conferences. 
 
Ref 3.2.4 which is not in the Qtr 3 report. There was a query raised as to what is 
the indicator referenced 3.2.4.  
 
This indicator is in the table at the back of the appendix listing all indicators which are 
reported annually. This one is reported in narrative and is -The economic impact of 
visitors to the museums. 
 
Ref 3.3.4 Number of people accessing leisure and recreational facilities. The 
question was whether more information can be provided on the facilities and why 
they are used or not used. 
 
This indicator was off target in quarter three. The numbers for each venue are stated 
in the report, as are the reasons for some of the short term closures which have 
impacted on the results for the quarter. Due to a software system error there is a 
problem in recording attendance at bookable activities and the resulting calculations 
are not in accordance with best practice. For example, an Astro Turf booking relates 
to 10 attendances/users but is currently counted as one in the system. This will be 
rectified to enable correct recording in the future.  
 
However given the issues around the partial closures of facilities at Kidsgrove, it is 
felt that the projected annual attendance figures will not be achieved. Officers are 
currently undertaking an options appraisal for a strategic review of the provision of 
the sporting facilities in Kidsgrove. 

 
 
 
 
Beverly Cleary 
Business Improvement Officer (Performance & Procurement) 
Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council 
Beverley.cleary@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk  
01782 742758 
 

Page 54



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

 

Transformation and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

26 March 2014 

 
Report Author: Mark Bailey 
Job Title: Head of Business Improvement, Central Services & 

Partnerships 
Email:   Mark.Bailey@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk 
Telephone:  01782 742751 

Introduction 

The Constitution Review Working Group wishes to put forward a number of 

recommendations to the Transformation and Resources Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee in advance of Full Council in April 2014.  The Working Group consists of 

three Members - Cllr Elizabeth Shenton (Chair), Cllr Mark Holland and Cllr Nigel 

Jones. Their work is supported by officers of the Council. 

 

Questions to be Addressed 

Are Members happy to accept the recommendations of the Constitution Review 

Working Group?  Do they wish to modify them? 

Do Members feel the Working Group should look at any other areas not covered in 

the report in the future? 

Outcomes 

The recommendations are intended to enhance the democratic processes of the 

Council; ensure that the Council is acting in accordance with statute; and ensure the 

Council’s Constitution reflects the current processes of the Council.  A full discussion 

on the recommendations will ensure any changes are fully thought through, 

transparent and robust.  It is recognised that some of the new processes may need 

to evolve over time to further enhance the democratic process. 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Main Report 

 

Scrutiny Chairs/Vice Chairs Group 

The Working Group has had extensive discussions regarding the Overview and 

Scrutiny Co-ordinating Committee. They reached the conclusion that much of the 

work of this committee could be completed outside of the formal local government 

committee structures.  

In its place, therefore, an informal Scrutiny Group would be set up, the Membership 

of which would consist of the Chairs and Vice Chairs of all the Scrutiny Committees.  

Group Leaders would also be invited to attend the meetings. Senior officers and 

Cabinet Members would be asked to attend certain meetings to discuss the scrutiny 

process and advise on topics on the various scrutiny work plans.  The committee has 

previously considered areas which were considered to be cross-cutting such as the 

Community Centre review.  The Scrutiny Group in future could agree which 

committee would be most suitable to consider topics which are believed to cross the 

remit of two or more scrutiny committees. 

The Scrutiny Chairs’ meeting would be diarised and informal agendas sent out in 

advance of the meeting, with notes taken on the actions coming out of each meeting. 

The Chair of each Scrutiny Committee could provide an update to their respective 

committees as and when required. The suggestion has also been made that the 

group could rotate the chair of the meeting on a regular basis. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 That the Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordinating Committee should be replaced with 

an informal Scrutiny Group, which would meet at least bi-monthly. 

Agreed by Transformation & Resources O & S Committee on 22.1.14. 

 

The Finance, Resources and Partnerships Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

The Constitution Review Working Group discussed the title of the current 

Transformation and Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee.  It has been 

suggested that this title no longer reflects the Council’s corporate priorities.  The 

remit of the Committee could be extended to include matters relating to the priority of 

the Council to become a Co-operative Council.  This suggested change reflects the 

corporate priority of ‘becoming a co-operative council delivering high quality 

community driven services’ (replacing the former priority of ‘transforming the Council 

to achieve excellence’).  The Working Group therefore recommended that the title of 

Page 56



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

the committee should change to ‘The Finance, Resources and Partnerships 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee.’ 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  

A) That the Transformation and Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee be 

renamed the ‘Finance, Resources and Partnerships Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee.’   

B) That the remit be changed to reflect the work being done under the Council’s 

corporate priority of ‘becoming a co-operative Council delivering high quality 

community driven services’. 

Agreed by Transformation & Resources O & S Committee on 22.1.14 

 

Health Scrutiny Committee 

The Constitution Working Group has given consideration to the governance 

arrangements of the Health Scrutiny Committee.  The Borough Council’s current 

Health Scrutiny Committee consists of seven Members and does not have a Vice 

Chair.  It is felt that there will be benefit to the democratic process if the membership 

of this committee is increased to eleven in line with the other scrutiny committees of 

the Council.  The committee should also expand its remit to cover work areas where 

there is apparent duplication with the other Scrutiny Committees, in particular the 

Cleaner, Greener and Safer Communities Scrutiny Committee and the Active and 

Cohesive Scrutiny Committee.  It should be noted that the Health Scrutiny 

Committee is technically a Joint Committee with the County Council and is subject to 

a ‘Joint Code of Working Agreement’ with them.  There is one County Council 

representative on the committee and this arrangement would remain in place even if 

the total membership of the Borough’s Health Scrutiny Committee was increased.  

The Working Group has come to the view that the Health Scrutiny Committee should 

cover the topic of health improvement (currently with the Active and Cohesive 

Scrutiny Committee).  The Group also felt that alcohol and drugs, from a public 

health perspective and sometimes considered by the Cleaner, Greener and Safer 

Communities Scrutiny Committee, should be solely within the remit of the Health 

Scrutiny Committee.  Specific health issues relating to older people should also be 

covered by the Health Scrutiny Committee and removed from the remit of the 

Cleaner, Greener and Safer Scrutiny Committee, with the Active and Cohesive 

Scrutiny Committee taking on issues relating to social and cultural aspects of older 

people.  To better reflect this extended remit it is proposed that the Committee’s 

name be changed to the Health and Well-Being Scrutiny Committee.  The suggested 

terms of reference are set out below: 

Page 57



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Health and Well-Being Scrutiny Remit 

• Commissioning of and provision of health care services, whether acute or 

preventative/early intervention affecting residents of the borough of Newcastle 

under Lyme 

• Staffordshire Health and Well Being Board and associated committees, 

sub-committees and operational/commissioning groups  

• North Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG 

• Staffordshire County Council Public Health  

• University Hospital North Staffordshire (UHNS) 

• Combined Healthcare and Stoke and Staffordshire NHS Partnership 

• Health organisations within the Borough area such as GP surgeries 

• NULBC Health and Well-Being Strategy and Staffordshire Health and Well 

Being Board Strategy ‘Living Well in Staffordshire 2013-2018’ 

• Health Improvement (including but not exclusively) diet, nutrition, smoking, 

physical activity, poverty (including Poverty & Licensing Policy) 

• Specific health issues for older people 

• Alcohol and drug issues 

• Formal consultations 

• Local partnerships 

• Matters referred direct from Staffordshire County Council 

• Referring matters to Staffordshire County Council for consideration where a 

problem has been identified within the Borough of Newcastle-under-Lyme 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

a) That the Health Scrutiny Committee expands its remit to include health 

improvement and alcohol and drug issues with new terms of reference agreed 

which should not contradict the Joint Code of Working with the County 

Council.   

b) That the Membership of the Committee is extended to 11 Members and that a 

Vice Chair is appointed.  

c) That Staffordshire County Council is notified of the new arrangements.   

Page 58



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

d) That the Committee is renamed the ‘Health and Well-Being Scrutiny 

Committee.’ 

Agreed by Transformation & Resources O & S Committee on 22.1.14 but 

further areas of scrutiny have since been added 

Scrutiny Committee Remits 

A recommendation from the Working Group was for the remits of all the Scrutiny 

Committees to be listed on their work plans.  This measure has now been 

implemented and each committee chair will ask their committee to feed back on the 

current remits.  The current (non-amended) remits are attached to the report as 

Appendix A.  Any changes to these will be reported to Full Council. 

 

Scrutiny Committee Mechanics 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Working Group recommends that the word ‘’overview’’ be removed from all 

scrutiny committee titles 

Agreed by Transformation & Resources O & S Committee on 22.1.14 

 

Items on the Work Plan 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That a Member of the Council is entitled to ask for an item to be included on the work 

plan of a committee and that the Chair must give a valid reason if this request is to 

be declined.  

Agreed at Transformation & Resources O & S Committee on 22.1.14 

 

Public Question Time 

The Constitution Working Group recognises that there is currently no provision for 

the public to be able to ask questions at Scrutiny Committee meetings.  The Working 

Group is of the unanimous view that a member of the public should be able to serve 

notice of a question which falls within the remit of a Scrutiny Committee.  The 

Working Group further proposes that a member of the public should be able to ask a 

question if they served it with two clear working days’ notice.  The Chair would be 

able to use their discretion if the deadline was missed.  The item allowing for a public 

question time would therefore become a standing one similar to apologies for 

absence. A limit of a total of three questions per meeting would be permitted, with 

Page 59



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

the relevant Chair having the ultimate decision on the permissibility of the questions. 

Consideration has also been given to whether the practice should be introduced at 

Cabinet meetings. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

a) That Public Question Time for Scrutiny Committees and Cabinet be 

incorporated into the Council’s Constitution.   

b) That a member of the public should serve two clear days’ notice in writing of 

any such question to the appropriate Committee Officer.   

c) That the Chair of the committee being questioned is given the discretion to 

waive the above deadline and assess the permissibility of the questions. The 

chair’s decision will be final.   

d) That a maximum of three public questions is asked at any one Scrutiny 

Committee meeting or Cabinet meeting. 

e) That a maximum time of three minutes is provided for each person to ask an 

initial question or make an initial statement to the Committee.   

f) That a rule be included to disallow any questions that are deemed to be 

repetitious or vexatious.  

Agreed by Transformation & Resources O & S Committee on 22.1.14 

 

Portfolio Holder Question Time 

The Constitution Working Group acknowledges that Portfolio Holder Question Time 

has been trialled at some of the Scrutiny Committees and has been received 

favourably to date.  It is not proposed that this become a standing item but could 

perhaps be held every six months or so at the discretion of the Chair of each of the 

Scrutiny Committees.  Portfolio Holder Question Time provides an opportunity for the 

Portfolio Holder to talk about their priorities and work objectives and a chance to 

inform the Scrutiny Committee of any issues or concerns that they may currently be 

facing within their portfolio.  It is also an opportunity for them to flag up areas within 

their remit that they think may benefit from scrutiny in the future, including policy 

development. Portfolio Holder Question time is also an opportunity for scrutiny 

committee members to ask questions of the Portfolio Holder.  This in turn could help 

inform the Committee’s work plan, if appropriate. 

Page 60



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

RECOMMENDATION: (i) That the concept of Portfolio Holder Question time at 

Scrutiny Committees is ratified in the Council’s 

constitution.   

Agreed by Transformation & Resources O & S Committee on 22.1.14. 

 

Chairing of Meetings 

Whilst the Constitution Review Working Group recognises that Member training and 

development is not strictly within their remit, the subject has arisen within the 

discussions. The Working Group recognises that some Scrutiny Chairs and Vice 

Chairs are fairly new in their positions.  As a result, the Working Group wishes to 

ensure that all Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs are offered learning and 

development opportunities, which could include in-house training; observing 

meetings at other Councils; and attending official external courses.  The Centre for 

Public Scrutiny also offers a number of useful guides.   

RECOMMENDATION: 

That learning and development opportunities for Chairs and Vice-Chairs of Scrutiny 

be enhanced (within current budget constraints).   

Agreed by Transformation & Resources O & S Committee on 22.1.14 

 

Cabinet Panels 

A definition of Cabinet Panels and their purpose has been received and considered 

by the Working Group. This has been revised and can be included as part of the 

proposals  to amend the Constitution.  This document is attached as an Appendix. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Cabinet Panels be formally recognised in the Council’s Constitution (detailing 

how and why they are set up; how their work is communicated; the need for terms of 

reference; and details on their membership) 

NOT agreed at Transformation & Resources O & S Committee on 22.1.14 

 

Dispensations 

The Constitution Review Working Group identified that Dispensations were not 

included in the Constitution.  A document has therefore been produced and 

considered by the Working Group.  It outlines the purpose and effect of 

Page 61



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

dispensations; the procedure for requesting them and the criteria applied in 

determining dispensation requests and the terms of these dispensations.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Dispensations be added to the Constitution.  

NOT agreed at Transformation & Resources O & S Committee on 22.1.14 

 

Staffing – Terms of Reference 

The Constitution Working Group recommended that Item number 2G “To make 

representations to the Local Government Association and/or the Government 

or other organisations about any matter relating to employees of the Council” 

be removed from the Constitution. 

RECOMMENDATION: That item 2 be removed from the Constitution 

NOT agreed at Transformation & Resources O & S Committee on 22.1.14 

 

Pre-Cabinet Scrutiny 

The Constitution Review Working Group acknowledges that pre-Cabinet scrutiny is 

an area where the scrutiny process can have a positive impact.  The pre-Cabinet 

approach can help inform decisions and reassure the Council that the decision 

making process is robust, fair and transparent.  It is evident from looking at the work 

plans of all of the Scrutiny Committees that this is being developed already.  The 

Working Group also wishes to include a statement in the Constitution that formally 

recognises the important function of pre-Cabinet Scrutiny. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That a statement be written into the Constitution formally acknowledging the 

importance of pre-Cabinet Scrutiny as a function of Scrutiny Committees. 

Agreed at Transformation & Resources O & S Committee on 22.1.1 

 

Policy Development 

The Working Group acknowledges that policy development is an important area 

where Scrutiny Committees can have a positive impact.  Draft policies are often 

received by Scrutiny before being finalised, allowing Members to have an input into 

the process.  As part of Portfolio Holder Question Time sessions, the Portfolio Holder 

is asked to consider areas that may benefit from the input of Scrutiny in the field of 

Page 62



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

policy development.  Whilst the Working Group acknowledges that policy 

development and review is already referred to as a Scrutiny function in the 

Constitution, the Working Group also wishes Council to reaffirm this as an important 

part of Scrutiny’s work 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Members reaffirm the importance of policy development as a part of the 

Scrutiny process.  

Agreed at Transformation & Resources O & S Committee on 22.1.14 

 

Officer Presentations at Scrutiny Committees 

The LGA Peer Review in 2013 recommended that officer presentations at Scrutiny 

Committees should be limited to 15 minutes.  Whilst the Working Group sees a 

benefit in limiting presentations to allow a full debate by Members of each 

committee, it also believes that the Chair should have discretion to waive such a 

limitation if there is good reason to do so and that the recommendation should cover 

all presentations, not just those given by officers.  The group was unsure as to 

whether a section relating to this should be included in the Constitution or whether it 

was sufficient to communicate this to those giving presentations at the time of their 

invitation. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That presentations to Scrutiny Committees be limited to 15 minutes* unless 

permission is sought from the Chair before the meeting starts to extend the time of 

the presentation  

*Transformation & Resources O & S Committee on 22.1.14 changed this to 10 

minutes. 

 

Changing the Constitution - Process 

The Constitution Working Group felt that there should be a nominated Council officer 

responsible for updating the Constitution.. They also considered the definition of a 

‘minor change’. They concluded that ‘minor changes’ should be defined as 

administrative errors, typing mistakes, job title/responsibility changes, omissions etc 

and should only be taken to Council on annual basis, with changes made to the 

Constitution in the interim by the nominated officer. 

The Constitution currently contains the following paragraph regarding approval of 

changes:- 

Page 63



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

‘Changes to the Constitution will only be approved by the Full Council after 

consideration of the proposal by the Monitoring Officer, save that the Monitoring 

Officer may make consequential changes to the Constitution, to reflect resolutions of 

the Council or Cabinet or decisions properly made under delegated powers and 

changes of fact and law subject to regular notification of Members to such changes. ‘ 

The group recommends that the following wording be removed: 

‘[o]r Cabinet or decisions properly made under delegated powers and changes 

of fact and law subject to regular notification of Members to such changes.’ 

Therefore, with the exception of consequential changes as defined above (including 

minor changes), it is only Full Council that can authorise a change in the 

Constitution.  Committees and working groups can continue to recommend changes 

to Full Council.  Any minutes which include decisions where changes to the 

Constitution are made will be sent to the nominated officer responsible for ongoing 

updates of the Constitution, and this will include policy changes and updates. 

Changes to the Scheme of Delegation relating to officers will be amended and 

recorded by the nominated officer subject to the approval of the Monitoring Officer.  

A change in the Scheme of Delegation relating to officers will be seen as a 

consequential change and therefore will not require approval by Full Council.  

Regular notification of such changes would be reported to Members in line with the 

current provision in the Constitution.   

The Working Group are of the view that the Constitution should be made available in 

PDF format so it is easier to navigate and copies of the Constitution should be 

provided to newly-elected Members at their induction by the Democratic Services 

section.  

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

A) That an officer is nominated to make the necessary approved changes to the 

Constitution. 

B) That the following wording from the current Constitution relating to the approval of 

changes be removed: 

‘[o]r Cabinet or decisions properly made under delegated powers and changes 

of fact and law subject to regular notification of Members to such changes.’ 

C) That ‘minor changes’ to the Constitution should be defined as administrative 

errors, typing mistakes, changes to job titles/responsibilities, omissions etc and 

should only be reported to Council on an annual basis, with the necessary changes 

made to the Constitution in the interim.   

D) That any changes to the Scheme of Delegation relating to officers will be 

amended and recorded by the nominated officer subject to the approval of the 

Page 64



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Monitoring Officer.  A change in the Scheme of Delegation relating to officers will be 

seen as a consequential change and therefore not require approval by Council.   

E) That regular notification of changes in the Constitution will be reported to 

Members in line with the current provision in the Constitution 

F) That, with the exception of ‘minor changes’ and consequential changes (as 

already defined within the Constitution), it is only Council that can authorise a 

change in the Constitution. Committees and working groups can continue to 

recommend changes to Council. 

G) That all changes to committee membership be reported to the Council meeting 

prior to Annual Council on an annual basis, unless otherwise required 

Agreed at Transformation & Resources O & S Committee on 22.1.14, with the 

exception of the highlighted change 

 

Scheme of Delegations 

The Scheme of Delegation is currently undergoing a refresh and is being updated by 

relevant officers  

Substitutes 

Full Council have already established their support for substitutes in principle. The 

Constitution Review Working Group has also looked at the actual process for 

substitutions. The Working Group propose that, at the Annual Council Meeting when 

the Membership for each Committee is put forward, that substitutes for each 

Committee are also confirmed.  

The Working Group has proposed that, for every Member on the each committee, 

there can be one substitute.  For example, if there were 7 Labour Members, 2 

Conservative Members and 1 Liberal Democrat, there would be 7 Labour 

substitutes, 2 Conservative substitutes and 1 Liberal Democrat substitute. There is, 

however, no need to have a substitute for every member on a committee and 

training for all substitutes will be required for regulatory committees.  The nominated 

substitute could represent any Member of the same political group.  The Working 

Group proposes that at least 24 hours’ notice should be served to the Chair of the 

Committee by the Member who will be absent.  Where possible, it is the 

responsibility of the Member apologising to arrange a substitute and this 

responsibility should not be delegated to an officer of the Council.  

 

 

Page 65



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

A). That the principle of substitutes being nominated for Members missing 

committee meetings is agreed 

B). That for every Member of a committee, there can be one substitute nominated 

C).  That any Member who is due to miss a meeting needs to inform the Chair of 

the relevant committee 24 hours before the committee is due to meet (and that it is 

the Member concerned who does this) 

D). That, at any one meeting, there should be no more than two substitutes per 

political grouping present 

E). That training is provided for nominated substitutes on regulatory committees 

F). That, where a Planning Committee site visit is involved, substitutes will only 

be allowed to attend and vote at the relevant Planning Committee if they have been 

on the site visit  

Not agreed at Transformation & Resources O & S Committee on 22.1.14, but 

recommendations suggested as above 

Conclusions 

The report has provided a number of recommendations for Members to consider and 

the background to explain how the Constitution Review Working Group has come to 

put forward these recommendations. The Constitution Review Working Group’s 

‘parent’ Committee is the Transformation and Resources Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee and therefore the Working Group seek approval of the recommendations 

as listed within the report. It is recommended that a final report is taken to Council in 

April for discussion. 

Relevant Portfolio Holder(s) 

Cllr Gareth Snell – Communications, Policy & Partnerships  

Local Ward Member (if applicable) 

All 

Appendices 

Cabinet panels 

Dispensations 

Page 66



  
 

  
 

CABINET PANELS 

 

• Cabinet Panels may be established by the Cabinet 
 

• Cabinet Panels will be established by the Cabinet in order to examine a 
specific area of work or policy.  They will be clearly defined and have an 
agreed Terms of Reference for the required piece of work or area of policy to 
be reviewed. The brief and Terms of Reference will be defined by the Cabinet. 

 

• The rules of political proportionality shall apply to the membership of each 
Panel 

 

• Chairs of the Panels will be the relevant Portfolio holder .  
 

• The date and place of meetings shall be set by the Chair of the Panel as far 
ahead as possible and notified to members. Once a date is set it will not be 
changed without consulting other members. 

 

• The quorum for the meeting is one quarter of the members, with a minimum of 
three  

 

• An agenda and reports will be sent to members at least 5 clear days in 
advance of each meeting 

 

• Minutes of each meeting will be produced and published as per other formal 
Council meetings.  
 

• Decisions will be formally recorded and subject to the same call in procedure 
as other committees 

 

• Cabinet Panels shall report to the Cabinet, and may refer matters to the 
relevant Scrutiny Committee for comment. 

 

• Panels will be time limited and terminated upon reporting unless their brief is 
extended by Cabinet. 

 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



  

  
1 

 

 
 

DISPENSATIONS PROCESS AND FORM 
 

1. Introduction 

 

1.2 This guide explains: 

 

(a) the purpose and effect of dispensations 

 

(b) the procedure for requesting dispensations 

 

(c) the criteria which are applied in determining dispensation requests and the terms of 

dispensations. 

 

2. Purpose and effect of dispensations 

 

2.1         In certain circumstances Council Members or co-opted Members may be granted a 

dispensation from restrictions under Section 31(4) of the Localism Act.   Section 31 relates to 

pecuniary interests in matters considered at meetings or by a single Member.  Such 

dispensation then enables Members to take part in Council business where this would 

otherwise be prohibited by Section 31(4). 

 

3. Process for making requests 

 

3.1 Any Councillor who wishes to apply for a dispensation must complete fully the attached 

form at Appendix A and submit it to the Monitoring Officer at least 5 working days before 

the meeting for which the dispensation is required.  Applications may be accepted within a 

shorter period in exceptional circumstances at the sole discretion of the Monitoring Officer. 

 

3.2 In order to avoid delay Councillors must ensure that they give full details of the grounds for 

their request and submit it to the Monitoring Officer as soon as they become aware that a 

dispensation is necessary. 

 

3.3 A request for dispensation must be made on an individual basis.  Group applications are not 

permitted. 

 

4. Consideration by the Monitoring Officer 

 

4.1 The Monitoring Officer will consider requests for a dispensation in the order in which they 

are received having regard to the criteria set out in paragraph 6. 

 

Page 69



  

  
2 

 

4.2 In the case of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, the Monitoring Officer, after consultation 

with the Chair of the Standards Committee and the Independent Person(s), may grant a 

dispensation if they consider that either: 

 

(a) without the dispensation the number of persons prohibited by Section 31(4) of the 

Localism Act 2011 from participating in any particular business would be so great a 

proportion of the body transacting the business as to impede the transaction of the 

business (i.e. the meeting would be inquorate);  

 

(b) considers that without the dispensation, the representation of different political 

groups on the body transacting any particular business would be so unbalanced as 

to alter the likely outcome of any vote relating to the business;  

 

(c) considers that granting the dispensation is in the interests of persons living in the 

authority’s area; 

 

(d) considers that without the dispensation each member of the authority’s Executive 

would be prohibited by Section 31(4) from participating in any particular business to 

be transacted by the authority’s Executive; or 

 

(e) considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation. 

 

4.3 The provisions of paragraph 4.2 shall also apply in the same way in the case of an Ordinary 

Pecuniary Interest, subject to the substitution of “the Code of Conduct” for “Section 31(4) of 

the Localism Act 2011” in that paragraph. 

 

4.4 The terms of any dispensation shall be in accordance with paragraph 7. 

 

4.5 The Monitoring Officer will notify the Councillor of her decision and reasons in writing at the 

earliest opportunity and in any event within 2 working days of the decision. 

 

4.6 If the Monitoring Officer does not fully grant the dispensation requested by the Councillor, 

she will refer the request to the Standards Committee as soon as is reasonably practicable. 

 

5. Consideration by the Standards Committee 

 

5.1 The Standards Committee will consider requests for a dispensation referred by the 

Monitoring Officer in the order in which they were received by the Monitoring Officer, 

having regard to the criteria set out in paragraph 6. 

 

5.2 Meetings of the Standards Committee will normally be open to the public and any Councillor 

who has submitted a request will have the opportunity to attend and made representations 

in support of their application 

 

5.3 In the case of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, the Standards Committee may grant a 

dispensation if they consider that: 

 

(a) without the dispensation the number of persons prohibited by Section 31(4) of the 

Localism Act 2011 from participating in any particular business would be so great a 

proportion of the body transacting the business as to impede the transaction of the 

business (i.e. the meeting would be inquorate) 

Page 70



  

  
3 

 

 

(b) without the dispensation the representation of different political groups or the body 

transacting any particular business would be so unbalanced as to alter the likely 

outcome of any vote relating to the business 

 

(c) granting the dispensation is in the interests of persons living in the Council’s area 

 

(d) without the dispensation each member of the Council’s Executive would be 

prohibited by Section 31(4) of the Localism Act 2011 from participating in any 

particular business to be transacted by the Council’s Executive; or 

 

(e) it is otherwise appropriate to grant dispensation. 

 

5.4 The provisions of paragraph 5.3 shall also apply in the same way in the case of an Ordinary 

Pecuniary Interest, subject to the substitution of “the Code of Conduct” for “Section 31(4) of 

the Localism Act 2011” in that paragraph. 

 

5.5 The terms of any dispensation shall be in accordance with paragraph 7. 

 

5.6 The Monitoring Officer will notify the Councillor of the Committee’s decision and reasons in 

writing at the earliest opportunity and in any event within 2 working days of the decision. 

 

6. Criteria for determination of requests 

 

6.1 In reaching a decision on a request for a dispensation the Monitoring Officer or the 

Standards Committee (as appropriate) will take into account: 

 

(a) the nature of the Councillor’s prejudicial interest 

 

(b) the need to maintain public confidence in the conduct of the Council’s business 

 

(c) the possible outcome of the proposed vote 

 

(d) the need for efficient and effective conduct of the Council’s business and any other 

relevant circumstances. 

 

7. Terms of dispensations 

 

7.1 Dispensations may be granted: 

 

(a) For one meeting; or 

 

(b) For a period not exceeding 12 months. 

 

7.2 Dispensations may allow the Councillor: 

 

(a) to participate, or participate further, in any discussion of the matter at the 

meeting(s); and/or 

 

(b) to participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting(s). 

 

Page 71



  

  
4 

 

7.3 If a dispensation is granted, the Councillor may remain in the room where the meeting 

considering the business is being held, unless directed otherwise by the Chair of the meeting 

or the Councillor wishes to withdraw. 

 

8. Disclosure of decision 

 

8.1 Any Councillor who has been granted a dispensation must declare the nature and existence 

of the dispensation before the commencement of any business to which it relates. 

 

8.2 A copy of the dispensation will be kept with the Councillor’s Register of Interests. 

  

Page 72



  

  
5 

 

Appendix A 

 

The Borough Council of Newcastle-under-Lyme 

Standards Committee 

Dispensation Request Form 
 

Please give full details of the following in support of your application for a dispensation.  You should 

refer to the accompanying guidance “Dispensations and Process and Form”. 

 

If you need any help completing this form please contact the Monitoring Officer. 

 

Your Name 

 

 

Decision-making body in respect of which you 

require a dispensation  

 

 

 

Details of your membership of that body  

 

 

The business for which you require a 

dispensation (refer to agenda item number if 

appropriate) 

 

 

 

Details of your interest in that business  

 

 

Date of meeting or time period (up to 12 

months) for which dispensation is sought 

 

 

Dispensation requested to participate, or 

participate further, in any discussion of that 

business by that body 

Yes/No 

Dispensation requested to participate in any 

vote, or further vote, taken on that business by 

that body 

Yes/No 

Full reasons why you consider a dispensation is 

necessary (use the continuation sheet if 

required) 

 

 

Page 73



  

  
6 

 

 

Continuation sheet 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:  ....................................................................  Dated:  ....................................................................  

 

Please send your completed form to: 

 

The Monitoring Officer 

The Borough Council of Newcastle-under-Lyme 

Civic Offices 

Merrial Street 

Newcastle-under-Lyme 

Staffordshire 

ST5 2AG 

 

or by email to: liz.j.dodd@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk 

 

You will normally receive notification of the Monitoring Officer’s decision within 2 working days of 

the decision. 

Page 74



  

  

 

Transformation and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Work Plan Review 

 
Committee Name: Transformation and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Chair: Cllr Paul Waring 
Vice-Chair: Cllr Sylvia Burgess 
Portfolio Holder(s) Covering the Committee’s Remit: 
Cllr Gareth Snell – Communications, Policy and Partnerships 
Cllr Mike Stubbs – Finance and Resources 
Cllr Terry Turner – Economic Development, Regeneration & Town Centres 
 

Date of 
Meeting 

Topic 
 

Outcomes / Recommendations Further Action Required / 
Feedback 

20th May 
2013 

The Reporter Magazine That a questionnaire be included in an issue of The 
Reporter, asking a number of multiple choice 
questions relating to its future direction. 
 
That the number of hits The Reporter receives on 
the website be determined. 
 
That the difference in cost between black and 
white and colour printing of The Reporter be 
determined.        

Scrutiny 
recommendations were 
considered by the 
Leader and officers – no 
further action taken at 
this stage 

 Budget Preparation  Budget agreed by Full 
Council 22nd February 
2014.  

 Constitution Working Party Working Party was reconvened with Cllr Shenton 
in the chair.  
 
 
 
 

Report due to go to 
meeting on 26th March 
2014 before submission 
to Full Council in April 
2014. 

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 8



  

  

 Modernisation of the Post Office 
Network 

That Officers meet with Staffordshire County 
Council to consider a three way working approach 
with the Post Office. 
 
That the Scrutiny Committee receives a further 
report in the future when more information is 
available.   

On work plan for future 
consideration.  

 Keele Golf Course  That Cabinet be asked to consider a junior rate at 
Keele golf Course.   
 
That a further report on Keele Golf Course, with a 
particular focus on the financial position, be 
commissioned for the extra meeting of the Scrutiny 
Committee proposed for July. 

Reports also brought to 
meetings on 22nd July, 
2nd September, 9th 
October  
 
 
Ongoing 

 Recommendations from Cabinet 
meeting held on 5th March in 
relation to Keele Golf Course 

a) That officers be authorised to engage with nearby/adjacent land 
owners with a view to jointly commissioning a comprehensive master-
planning exercise, involving Borough Council owned land in the area in 
order to establish the most appropriate long term use for the Keele Golf 
Course site. 
b) That officers report back on the outcome of the land owner 
engagement process and to seek approval for a two stage master planning 
exercise beginning with a scoping report to identify its physical 
parameters, with any budgetary approval being sought from Council as 
necessary. 
c) That officers be authorised to undertake a limited maintenance 
regime on the basis described in the report until the outcome of the master 
planning exercise is known. 
d) That officers be authorised to undertake security measures 
described in the report. 
e) That officers be authorised to see expressions of interest in some 
form(s) of interim use for a period of up to three years. 
f) That officers keep under review the holding costs attributed to the 

P
age 76



  

  

Keele Golf Course and take all appropriate steps to minimise the same. 
g) That a wider, broader leisure use be kept in mind. 

 Financial and Performance 
Management Report 

Regular reports continue to be received Ongoing 

22nd July 
2013 

UK Mail Added to work Programme due to the poor level of 
service that the company appeared to be providing 

Agreed at meeting held 
on 2nd September that 
the Committee would 
look at the Council’s mail 
arrangements when the 
contract came up again 
for renewal. 

 Budget Consultation and Budget 
Review Group 

 Budget approved by Full 
Council 22nd February 
2014 

2nd 
Septembe
r 2013 

Portfolio Holders Question time 
added to work programme 

Opportunity for the Committee to question the 
Portfolio Holders on their priorities and work 
objectives for the next 6 months and to address 
any issues or concerns that they may be facing.  

Ongoing every 6 months 

 Capital Strategy 2014 to 2014 The time limit for Right to Buy house purchases to 
be ascertained and circulated to the Committee. 
 
The Portfolio Holders for Finance and Resources 
and Economic Development, Regeneration and 
Town Centres to provide a response detailing how 
the Asset Management Strategy is compiled. 
 
The Executive Director, Resources and Support 
Services to review the wording of the Capital 
Strategy 2014 to 2017, with particular reference to 
paragraph 6.11 and amend if necessary. 

Agreed by Full Council 
on 22nd February 2013 

6th 
November 

Medium Term Financial Strategy The Portfolio Holder for Finance and Resources to 
ascertain whether the Medium Term Financial 

Strategy had previously 
been agreed by Cabinet P

age 77



  

  

2013 Strategy can be received by the Committee prior to 
Cabinet in future and provide a formal explanation 
as to why the strategy was received by Cabinet 
before the scrutiny committee.   

at the meeting held on 
16th October 2013. 

 Asset Management Strategy Approved by Cabinet at the meeting held on 15th January 2014 – decision 
was called in and rejected by Economic Development O&S Committee 

3rd 
December 
2013 

Budget Consultation Process Update from the Head of Communications on the 
outcomes of the consolation process 

 

 Treasury Management Strategy That the Committee approve the strategy for 
submission to the Full Council on 26 February 
2014. 

Agreed by Full Council 
on 22nd February 2014. 

 First Draft Savings Plans 
2014/2015 

General discussion regarding savings plan - further 
discussions held during the Scrutiny Café on 14th 
January and the next meeting of the Committee.  

 

 Revenue and Capital Budgets 
2014/2015 

Agreement that the report be submitted to Cabinet.   Agreed by Full Council 
on 22nd February 2014. 

14th 
January 

Budget Scrutiny Cafe Feedback on budget proposals received from 
Elected Members. 

 

22nd 
January 
2014 

Council Plan Members requested to provide any feedback on 
the draft plan to the Head of Business 
Improvements, Central Services and Partnerships. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 78



  

  

 

Task and Finish Groups: Review of the Constitution Working Group – action to look at scrutiny committee remits  

Future Task and Finish Groups:  

Suggestions for Potential Future Items: • Modernisation of the Post Office Network 

• Council Plan 

• Universal Credit 

• Ryecroft 

• Concurrent Functions – Request from Cabinet that scrutiny undertake a review in 
order to report back to Cabinet in time for implementation of a revised scheme for 
2015/2016. 

 
REMIT 
Transformation and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for: 
 

• Communications and consultation 

• Council structure and democracy and constitutional review 

• Customer contact and customer service centres 
 

P
age 79



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meetings
	4 Better Care Fund
	Staffordshire BCF
	Staffordshire BCF Submission intro
	Copy of Staffordshire submission Outcomes and Metrics

	5 Budget and Performance Monitoring Report Update from Previous Meeting
	6 Report from the Constitution Review Working Group
	CABINET PANELS definition 040314 v0.3b FINAL
	DispensationsProcessAndForm V4

	8 Annual Review of the Work Plan

